Public Document Pack

Would you please note that a Group Meeting will be held at 1.00 p.m. in the
Civic Office.

Agenda
___________________________________________________________________
To all Members of the

COUNCIL
Notice is given that a Meeting of the Council is to be held as follows:

Venue: Council Chamber, Floor 2, Civic Office, Waterdale, Doncaster
Date:

Thursday, 18th November, 2021

Time:
2.00 pm
____________________________________________________________________
Please Note: Due to current restrictions arising from the Covid-19 pandemic,
there will be limited capacity in the public gallery for observers of the meeting. If
you would like to attend to observe in person, please contact Governance
Services on 01302 737462 / 736723 / 736716 / 736712 to request a place, no later
than 5.00 pm on Wednesday, 17th November, 2021. Please note that the prebooked places will be allocated on a ‘first come, first served’ basis and once
pre-booked capacity has been reached there will be no further public
admittance to the meeting. For those who are attending the meeting, please
bring a face covering, unless you are exempt.
BROADCASTING NOTICE
This meeting is being filmed for subsequent broadcast via the Council’s site.
The Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection Act and images
collected during this recording will be retained in accordance with the Council’s
published policy. Please be aware that by entering the meeting, you accept that
you may be filmed and the images used for the purposes set out above.

Damian Allen
Chief Executive
___________________________________________________________________
Issued on: Wednesday, 10 November 2021
Governance Officer for this meeting
Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council
www.doncaster.gov.uk

David Taylor
01302 736712

ITEMS
1.

Apologies for Absence.

2.

To consider the extent, if any, to which the public and press are to be
excluded from the meeting.

3.

Declarations of Interest, if any.

4.

Minutes of the Council Meeting held on 23rd September, 2021.

5.

To receive any announcements from the Chair of Council, the Mayor,
Members of the Cabinet or the Head of Paid Service.

6.

Questions from the public in accordance with Council Procedure Rule
13:-

1-8

(a) Question from Mr Gary Wilson to Councillor Joe Blackham,
Cabinet Member for Highways, Infrastructure and
Enforcement:“Why does Doncaster Council allow the Assets of Community
Listing process to be detrimental and biased against
community applications?”
(b) Question from Mr Christopher Nowak to Councillor Phil Cole,
Cabinet Member for Finance and Trading Services:“Regarding Wool Market traders, on two separate visits only
three non-food traders were open at 2.30 pm. I have since
been told by a trader, that the reason for this is that all nonfood traders have been given notice to quit after Christmas by
Market Asset Management. Was the Council aware of this
when they gave MAM nearly £1 million recently and if true,
what are MAM going to replace the non-food traders with?”
A.

Items where the Public and Press may not be excluded.
For Decision

7.

Proposal to appoint additional Independent (Co-Opted) Member to
the Police and Crime Panel.

8.

To consider the following Motion, written notice of which has been
given by Councillor James Church and Seconded by Councillor
Gemma Cobby, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 16.1:“Doncaster Council notes that:

1 in 10 workers have experienced 'fire and rehire', told to reapply
for their jobs on worse pay, terms or conditions or face the sack,
with BME workers facing this at twice the rate of white workers.
Since March 2020 (TUC research January 2021), a quarter of all
workers have experienced a worsening of their terms and
conditions since the pandemic began.

9 - 18



That whilst the Prime Minister has called the practice
‘unacceptable’ he and his Government have continually refused to
take action to outlaw the practice, raising concerns that they will
not intervene in this race to the bottom as an escalating number of
employers across all sectors abuse our weak employment
protections to force their staff to accept worse terms and
conditions, leaving many having to work longer hours and for
lower pay, with what can be devastating consequences for
workers and their families.



Even before the pandemic, 1 in 9 workers, 3.8 million people,
were already insecure, meaning they did not have access to basic
rights at work and could be dismissed at will, including those on
zero hour contracts and agency workers.

Doncaster Council therefore resolves to:-

9.



Support local residents, through their Trade Unions, against such
unprincipled employers and write to the Prime Minister demanding
the Government outlaw fire and rehire and act now to keep his
promise to local residents to protect their employment terms and
conditions.



Not use fire and rehire itself as an employer and to prevent its use
by Council contractors, by ensuring the Council has a
procurement practice that ensures we are working with
contractors that have good employment, trade union, equality,
environmental records and appropriate policies.



Promote the increasing number of progressive local employers
prioritising their employee’s standard of living and their wellbeing,
work with our anchor institutions and key partners to bring forward
plans to ensure all have best practice employment and to work
with recognised trade unions on this.



Support the TUC campaign for a New Deal for working people.”

Questions by Elected Members in accordance with Council
Procedure Rules 15.2 and 15.3:(i)

Questions on Notice to the Executive:None received for this meeting.

(ii)

Questions without Notice to the Executive and the Chairs of
Committees.

For Information and Not Endorsement
10.

To receive the minutes of the following Joint Authorities.

19 - 74

A.

South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority Board held on
20th September, 2021.

B.

South Yorkshire Local Enterprise Partnership Board held on 9th
September, 2021.

C.

South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority held on 13th
September, 2021.

D.

South Yorkshire Pensions Authority held on 9th September,
2021.

E.

South Yorkshire Police and Crime Panel held on 20th
September, 2021.

Agenda Item 4
DONCASTER METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL
COUNCIL
THURSDAY, 23RD SEPTEMBER, 2021
A MEETING of the COUNCIL was held at the PREMIER SUITE - DONCASTER
RACECOURSE on THURSDAY, 23RD SEPTEMBER, 2021, at 6.00 pm.
PRESENT:
Vice-Chair - Councillor Ian Pearson (In the Chair)
Mayor - Ros Jones
Deputy Mayor - Councillor Glyn Jones
Councillors Nick Allen, Bob Anderson, Duncan Anderson, Lani-Mae Ball, Nigel Ball,
Daniel Barwell, Iris Beech, Glenn Bluff, Laura Bluff, Nigel Cannings, James Church,
Gemma Cobby, Phil Cole, Jane Cox, Steve Cox, Linda Curran, Aimee Dickson,
Sue Farmer, Sean Gibbons, Julie Grace, Martin Greenhalgh, John Healy,
Leanne Hempshall, Charlie Hogarth, Mark Houlbrook, Debbie Hutchinson,
Barry Johnson, Jake Kearsley, Majid Khan, Jane Kidd, Sue Knowles, Sophie Liu,
Tracey Moran, John Mounsey, Emma Muddiman-Rawlins, Tim Needham,
David Nevett, Jane Nightingale, Andy Pickering, Cynthia Ransome, Rob Reid,
Andrea Robinson, Glynis Smith, Sarah Smith, Gary Stapleton and Austen White.
APOLOGIES:
Apologies for absence were received from the Chair of Council, Councillor
Richard A Jones, Joe Blackham, Rachael Blake, Bev Chapman, Susan Durant,
Thomas Noon and Dave Shaw.
30

Declarations of Interest, if any
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting.

31

Minutes of the Council Meeting held on 15th July, 2021
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Council Meeting held on Thursday, 15th July,
2021, a copy of which had been circulated to each Member, be approved as a
correct record and signed by the Chair.

32

To receive any announcements from the Chair of Council, the Mayor, Members of the
Cabinet or the Head of Paid Service
The Deputy Mayor, Councillor Glyn Jones, made the following announcement:“As a Council, we are troubled about the number of cases reported to the RSPCA
each year, regarding live animals given as prizes via fairgrounds, social media and
other channels in England; this predominantly concerns goldfish.
We are concerned for the welfare of the animals that are being given as prizes, and in
an effort to combat this, we have banned the giving of live animals as prizes on land
A. 1

Page 1

owned by Doncaster Council. We only have control over Council land, but I strongly
encourage private landowners to do the same.
Giving animals away as prizes is completely inappropriate, and as a Council, we
support the RSPCA’s stance that this practice should be stopped.
I would like to thank Councillors Gemma Cobby and Daniel Barwell for championing
this change.”
Councillor Mark Houlbrook, Portfolio Holder for Sustainability and Waste, made the
following announcement:“As a Council, we are fully committed to our challenging targets to ensure we play our
part in reducing carbon emissions and meet our net zero targets by 2040. This will be
no easy task and will require significant investment from government, businesses and
the wider public sector.
Despite the pandemic over the last two years, we have seen considerable progress
being made. Planting new trees with a new tree register on the Council website,
creating green gateways, investing in 100% electric fleet vehicles, creating more
electric vehicle charging points, making homes more energy efficient, installing solar
panels on buildings and properties, promoting active travel and rewilding green
spaces to promote biodiversity and wildlife. There is a huge list of works we have done
and plenty more in the pipeline.
While the Council will do all it can to lead and inspire others to take action, the action
needs to be Borough-wide and needs everyone to take part. I will keep members
updated via our quarterly newsletter and through our new website which should be
available in the coming months, members and residents will then be able to get
regular updates at the touch of a button.
We all need to play our part, reducing our energy consumption, using more active
travel and public transport, as well as reducing levels of waste by recycling and reusing wherever possible.
We must do this to ensure that we leave a safe and habitable planet for generations to
come. As part of our Doncaster Delivering Together, the new 10 year strategy which is
before you today, our focus is on People, Place and Planet.”
33

Questions from the public in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 13
There were no questions from members of the public for this meeting.

34

Doncaster Delivering Together
Ros Jones, Mayor of Doncaster, presented to the Council the new Doncaster
Delivering Together Plan and outlined to Members the milestones it aimed to achieve
in the coming months and years.
Council was informed that the work carried out in undertaking the creation of the Plan
was about addressing a step change in moving forward and ensuring that the work of
the Council was refocused to build a better Borough for all its residents, with six
wellbeing goals anchored at the heart of it, as follows:A. 2
Page 2

 Greener and Cleaner Doncaster
 Skilled and Creative Doncaster
 Prosperous and Connected Doncaster
 Safe and Resilient Doncaster
 Healthy and Compassionate Doncaster
 Fair and Inclusive Doncaster
Members noted that the last 18 months had been dominated by the impact of Covid19, which had highlighted a number of inequalities across the Borough and in some
cases, worsened them, meaning the support given to assist in the recovery from the
pandemic would have to continue for some time to come. This had helped to shape
the ambitions to build a better Borough, with the creation of a 10 year plan that looked
to developing new partnerships in order to deliver the goals detailed above. Funding
and investment would be required to achieve the vision, and it was hoped through the
delivery of the Doncaster Delivering Together Plan, it would be possible to achieve the
outcome of Thriving People, Places and Planet.
The Mayor commended the report to Council and asked Members to join her in
supporting the Plan.
RESOLVED that the Doncaster Delivering Together Plan be endorsed and
approved.
35

Neighbourhood Planning - Adoption 'Making' of the Sprotbrough Neighbourhood
Development Plan
The Council considered a report which recommended the adoption of the Sprotbrough
Neighbourhood Plan following a successful referendum result in the Parish. Following
adoption by Full Council, the Sprotbrough Local Plan would be used to help determine
planning applications within the boundary area.
Councillor Nigel Ball, Portfolio Holder for Public Health, Leisure, Culture and Planning,
outlined that the Plan covered part of the Parish area of Sprotbrough and Cusworth,
and the Parish Council had worked closely with the Planning Policy and Environment
Team to ensure that the Sprotbrough Neighbourhood Plan complemented the Local
Plan and did not conflict with any of its policies.
Council noted that 12% of the local electorate in Sprotbrough and Cusworth had
turned out to vote in the referendum, with 633 out of the 773 who voted, voting for the
Neighbourhood Plan. This therefore meant that the referendum was successful and
the Council was therefore required to adopt the Neighbourhood Plan.
The Vice-Chair of Council opened the debate for any contributions from Elected
Members, and Councillor Cynthia Ransome voiced her support for the Sprotbrough
Neighbourhood Plan, thanking all Officers involved in its development.
RESOLVED that the Sprotbrough Neighbourhood Plan be adopted as part of
the statutory development plan for the Borough.

A. 3
Page 3

36

Adoption of the Doncaster Local Plan 2015-2035
The Council considered a report, which was introduced by Councillor Nigel Ball,
Portfolio Holder for Public Health, Leisure, Culture and Planning, which recommended
the adoption of the Doncaster Local Plan 2015 to 2035.
It was reported that the development of the Doncaster Local Plan had been a 7 year
journey, which would replace the saved policies from the Unitary Development Plan,
and the strategic policies of the Core Strategy, and would become part of the
Council’s statutory development plan and used for determining planning applications,
alongside Neighbourhood Plans where they were in place.
It was noted that the Council had carried out far more stages of engagement as part of
the Plan’s preparation than that prescribed by the legislation, and had undertaken
extensive consultation as part of the Plan’s preparation.
Members were informed that the Doncaster Local Plan provided a clarity of vision for
the Borough and the tools to encourage economic growth, and identified sufficient
land for homes and jobs in line with broader sustainability objectives. The Plan also
ensured there was a balanced distribution of development across the Borough, so
everyone in Doncaster had the opportunity to benefit from sustainable, well-planned,
inclusive growth. The Local Plan would help tackle climate change and ensure that
efforts to create a stronger economy would do so in a way that supported a
sustainable natural and built environment, which delivered a better quality of life for
residents and for future generations.
Councillor Ball pointed out that the general extent of the Green Belt had been retained
and the vast majority of the Borough’s countryside protected. The Plan positively
planned for the Borough’s future to ensure new development comes forward,
supported by appropriate social, physical and green infrastructure to help mitigate its
impacts and enhance the connectivity of the Borough.
RESOLVED that the Doncaster Local Plan 2015 to 2035 be adopted and
become part of the Development Plan for Doncaster, and its policies be given full
Development Plan weight for the purposes of determining planning applications.

37

Questions by Elected Members in accordance with Council Procedure Rules 15.2 and
15.3

A. Questions on Notice
Q. The following Question on Notice, had been received from Councillor Nick
Allen:“Do you agree that Doncaster Council should have done more to engage
with the public during the consultation for the Local Plan?”

A. 4
Page 4

A. The Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones, gave the following response:“The Doncaster Local Plan has been through a robust and comprehensive
process over a 7 year period to reach the milestone of now being ready to
adopt, including being examined in public by a Government appointed
Planning Inspector, and been found to be ‘sound’ and ‘legally compliant’.
There have been numerous opportunities for residents to engage with the
local plan process. I understand the concerns and objections that some of
our residents and communities have. There will be individual sites
identified that Councillors from across the Borough will have objections to,
but this is about the whole of Doncaster and has been prepared following
all the correct legal processes and procedures.
The Council undertook extensive consultation as part of the Plan’s
preparation. Indeed, the Inspector notes in his report that there has been
more stages of consultation carried out by the Council than that required by
the relevant government legislation.”
In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15.7, Councillor Nick Allen asked
the following supplementary question:Q. “How many responses did the Council actually receive in total to the
consultation?”
A. The Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones, gave the following response:“I do not have the total number. However, the Planning Inspector was
satisfied with the numbers and as I have said before, it is the Planning
Inspector who said it was robust. I will read out what was said. ‘The
Council’s Regulation 22(1)(c) Statement of Consultation thoroughly
demonstrates how the consultation carried out during the various stages of
Plan preparation was in compliance with the Council’s Statement of
Community Involvement adopted in July 2015. More stages of consultation
were held than required by the regulations. Whilst not explicitly setting out
the weight that the Council attached to consultation responses, that is not a
legal requirement, and it is clear that they were taken into account. The
documented evidence sets out the relevant planning issues. Where
necessary, I consider those issues in my assessment of soundness in the
subsequent sections of this report’. This justifies why we have all just
approved this Local Plan. If you require numbers, I am sure the Planning
Team can provide them in writing later.”
Q. The following Question on Notice, had been received from Councillor Jane
Cox:“I would like to ask the Mayor if she is confident following on from her
meeting with the Police and Crime Commissioner, that Doncaster will get its
fair share of the 269 new Police Officers in South Yorkshire? Historically,
Doncaster has not been prioritised and has had less than the other South
Yorkshire Boroughs.”
A. The Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones, gave the following response:A. 5
Page 5

“It is important to remember that we have lost over 500 frontline Police
Officers across South Yorkshire since 2010. We have seen local Police
Stations close across the Borough and the wider public sector has faced
similar if not larger reductions in Government funding. This is all due to 10
years of Austerity; our residents and communities are facing the
consequences of a failed Austerity programme through rising crime.
I have made my views clear in the strongest terms that Doncaster is not
adequately policed to combat crime and anti-social behaviour, and also to
give ongoing reassurance to the public. I do not feel that Doncaster is
getting the best possible service from South Yorkshire Police, but in the
spirit of partnership, I do want us to work together to resolve concerns. I
am grateful to Dr Billings and South Yorkshire Police colleagues for acting
upon my concerns and I look forward to more appropriate Policing levels,
and activity that is more visible to myself, the Council and the residents and
businesses in Doncaster, and which achieves results.
The Police and Crime Commissioner has promised to review the allocation
of Police resources across South Yorkshire as part of the budget setting for
the next financial year. So in answer to your question, yes I am hopeful
that Doncaster will get its fair allocation of new Police Officers, if not more.
The timing of when we get the additional Police Officers is crucial. We
need more officers on our streets and in our communities as a matter of
urgency. I will of course continue to keep pressing for our fair share.”
In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15.7, Councillor Jane Cox asked
the following supplementary question:Q. “Given the Mayor is reassured that we will get our fair share of Police
Officers, will she confirm, as Superintendent Thomas did in the Annual
Scrutiny meeting, that any anti-social behaviour reports to 736000 are fed
directly into the Police statistics?”
A. The Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones, gave the following response:“I believe we will get the right number of Police Officers, but we will
continue to press and anything reported needs to go through to the correct
number. I would urge people to actually report on the 101 number because
this is part of the process that is being used in the allocation of resources.”
B. Questions Without Notice
In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15.2, the Chair of Council sought
questions from Elected Members during Question Time.
A. Questions to the Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones
There were no questions put to the Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones.

A. 6
Page 6

B. Questions to the Deputy Mayor, Councillor Glyn Jones, Cabinet Member for
Housing and Business
There were no questions put to the Deputy Mayor, Cabinet Member for
Housing and Business.
C. Questions to Councillor Lani-Mae Ball, Cabinet Member for Education,
Skills and Young People
There were no questions put to Councillor Lani-Mae Ball, Cabinet Member
for Education, Skills and Young People.
D. Questions to Councillor Nigel Ball, Cabinet Member for Public Health,
Leisure, Culture and Planning
There were no questions put to Councillor Nigel Ball, Cabinet Member for
Public Health, Leisure, Culture and Planning.
E. Questions to Councillor Joe Blackham, Cabinet Member for Highways,
Infrastructure and Enforcement
In the absence of Joe Blackham, Cabinet Member for Highways,
Infrastructure and Enforcement, the Vice-Chair of Council informed
Members that any questions for Councillor Blackham should be submitted
to the Executive Office after the meeting, and a response would be
provided.
F. Questions to Councillor Rachael Blake, Cabinet Member for Children’s
Social Care, Communities and Equalities
In the absence of Councillor Rachael Blake, Cabinet Member for Children’s
Social Care, Communities and Equalities, the Vice-Chair of Council
informed Members that any questions for Councillor Blake should be
submitted to the Executive Office after the meeting, and a response would
be provided.
G. Questions to Councillor Phil Cole, Cabinet Member for Finance
There were no questions put to Councillor Phil Cole, Cabinet Member for
Finance.
H. Questions to Councillor Mark Houlbrook, Cabinet Member for Sustainability
and Waste
There were no questions put to Councillor Mark Houlbrook, Cabinet
Member for Sustainability and Waste.
I.

Questions to Councillor Jane Nightingale, Cabinet Member for Corporate
Resources
There were no questions put to Councillor Jane Nightingale, Cabinet
Member for Corporate Resources.
A. 7
Page 7

J. Questions to Councillor Andrea Robinson, Cabinet Member for Adult Social
Care
There were no questions put to Councillor Andrea Robinson, Cabinet
Member for Adult Social Care.
K. Questions to Councillor Austen White, Chair of the Audit Committee
There were no questions put to Councillor Austen White, Chair of the Audit
Committee.
L. Questions to Councillor Ian Pearson, Chair of the Elections and Democratic
Structures Committee
There were no questions put to Councillor Ian Pearson, Chair of the
Elections and Democratic Structures Committee.
M. Questions to Councillor Rachael Blake, Chair of the Health and Wellbeing
Board
In the absence of Councillor Rachael Blake, Chair of the Health and
Wellbeing Board, the Vice-Chair of Council informed Members that any
questions for Councillor Blake should be submitted to the Executive Office
after the meeting, and a response would be provided.
N. Questions to Councillor Jane Kidd, Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny
Management Committee
There were no questions put to Councillor Jane Kidd, Chair of the Overview
and Scrutiny Management Committee.
38

To receive the minutes of the following Joint Authorities
RESOLVED that the minutes of the following Joint Authorities be noted:A.

Sheffield City Region Mayoral Combined Authority Board held on 26th
July, 2021.

B.

Sheffield City Region Local Enterprise Partnership Board held on 1st July,
2021.

C.

South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority held on 21st June (Annual)
21st June (Ordinary) and 26th July, 2021.

D.

South Yorkshire Pensions Authority Local Pension Board held on 22nd
April and 15th July, 2021.

E.

South Yorkshire Pensions Authority held on 10th June, 2021 (Ordinary).

F.

South Yorkshire Police and Crime Panel held on 11th June and 19th July,
2021.

CHAIR:

DATE:
A. 8
Page 8

Agenda Item 7

Report
____________________________________________________________________
18th November 2021

To the Chair and Members of the
FULL COUNCIL
PROPOSAL TO APPOINT ADDITIONAL INDEPENDENT (CO-OPTED) MEMBER
TO THE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.

The Police and Crime Panel had a significant turnover of Members in May
2021. One of the current independent members suggested that the Panel
consider an application to the Secretary of State (Home office) for an
additional independent co-opted (non-voting) member.
The proposal to appoint a third independent member is a necessary means
of ensuring there is some critical mass – however small – of constitutionally
secured consistency in the membership of the Panel. A third independent
(co-opted) member would give a membership of 12 elected Members from
across the four South Yorkshire Districts and 3 independent (co-opted)
members recruited by advertisement. This proposal will not impact on
Doncaster Council’s current representation on the Police and Crime Panel.
In addition to an application to the Secretary of State an extra co-opted
member requires a change to the Police and Crime Panel’s Arrangements,
and those changes have to be approved by the four District Councils. This
decision must be unanimous across all four Districts to proceed.

EXEMPT REPORT
2.

This is not an exempt report.

RECOMMENDATIONS
3.

That Full Council endorse the Police and Crime Panel’s decision taken on
20th September 2021 to commence the process to appoint a third
Independent co-opted (non-voting) member.

www.doncaster.gov.uk

Page 9

WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR THE CITIZENS OF DONCASTER?
4.

There are no direct implications of this proposal for the communities of
Doncaster, but the resilience and consistency provided by an additional
Independent (co-opted) member provides increased support and scrutiny of
the Police and Crime Commissioner on behalf of all South Yorkshire
residents.

BACKGROUND
5.

The Police and Crime Panel (PCP) is a Joint Committee that was
established in 2012 to support and scrutinise Police and Crime
Commissioners. The Panel has 12 Members – 10 elected from the four
District Councils taking account of political proportionality across other Joint
Authority bodies such as Fire and Rescue Authority and Pensions Authority
– plus two independent (co-opted) members recruited by advertisement.

6.

Given the significant turnover of Members following the local elections in
May 2021, the PCP is now made up of almost wholly new Members. There
is no set tenure for Members of Joint Authorities so Members can serve for
one year as a minimum which impacts on consistency of knowledge and the
effectiveness of the Panel.

7.

The proposal to appoint a third independent member is a necessary means
of ensuring there is some critical mass – however small - of constitutionally
secured consistency in the membership of the Panel, thus ensuring the work
of the Police and Crime Commissioner is adequately supported and
scrutinised, and good governance is demonstrated.

8.

The appointment of a third independent (co-opted) member would not
impact on the political proportionality of the Panel. There would be 10
elected Members and 3 independent co-opted (non-voting) members.

9.

The issues are set out in Appendix 1 – the report to the Police and Crime
Panel on 20th September 2021.

10.

To proceed with an application to the Secretary of State (Home Office), the
decision will need to be approved by all four District Councils.

OPTIONS CONSIDERED
11.

An increase in elected Members would have significant implications for
political proportionality across the other Joint Authorities of Fire and Rescue
Authority and Pensions Authority. If the proposal is not approved, the Police
and Crime Panel’s membership will remain at 12. For the reasons set out in
the report this option is not preferred.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED OPTION
12.

Recruiting an independent (co-opted) member will provide consistency of
knowledge and skills as they are appointed for a maximum term of eight
years. The political proportionality of the other Joint Authorities will be
unaffected by this appointment.
Page 10

IMPACT ON THE COUNCIL’S KEY OUTCOMES
13.

Whilst there is no direct impact on the Council’s Key Outcomes, the scrutiny
and support of the Police and Crime Commissioner to hold the Chief
Constable to account provides assurance to the communities of South
Yorkshire that crime and policing is a high priority.
Outcomes
Doncaster Working: Our vision is for
more people to be able to pursue their
ambitions through work that gives
them and Doncaster a brighter and
prosperous future;

Implications
N/A

 Better access to good fulfilling work
 Doncaster businesses are
supported to flourish
 Inward Investment
Doncaster Living: Our vision is for
Doncaster’s people to live in a
borough that is vibrant and full of
opportunity, where people enjoy
spending time;

N/A

 The town centres are the beating
heart of Doncaster
 More people can live in a good
quality, affordable home
 Healthy and Vibrant Communities
through Physical Activity and Sport
 Everyone takes responsibility for
keeping Doncaster Clean
 Building on our cultural, artistic and
sporting heritage
Doncaster Learning: Our vision is for
learning that prepares all children,
young people and adults for a life that
is fulfilling;

N/A

 Every child has life-changing
learning experiences within and
beyond school
 Many more great teachers work in
Doncaster Schools that are good or
better
 Learning in Doncaster prepares
young people for the world of work

Page 11

Doncaster Caring: Our vision is for a
borough that cares together for its
most vulnerable residents;

N/A

 Children have the best start in life
 Vulnerable families and individuals
have support from someone they
trust
 Older people can live well and
independently in their own homes
Connected Council:
 A modern, efficient and flexible
workforce
 Modern, accessible customer
interactions
 Operating within our resources and
delivering value for money
 A co-ordinated, whole person,
whole life focus on the needs and
aspirations of residents
 Building community resilience and
self-reliance by connecting
community assets and strengths
 Working with our partners and
residents to provide effective
leadership and governance

N/A

RISKS AND ASSUMPTIONS
14.

The only risk associated with this report is that all four District Councils do
not agree with the proposal, and the process to apply to the Secretary of
State (Home Office) for an additional independent (co-opted) member could
not be progressed.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS [Officer initials SRF Date 21/10/21]
15.

The Panel’s Legal Adviser has provided his comments in paragraph 5-8 of
the report to the Panel on 20th September 2021 (see Appendix 1).

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS [Officer initials PH
16.

Date 29/10/21]

There are no financial implications for Doncaster Council as all allowances
for Police and Crime members – including independent (co-opted) members
are paid from the Grant allocated to the host Authority by the Home Office.
However, if the four local authorities approve the proposal, and the
Secretary of State agrees the Panel can go ahead and recruit an additional
independent (co-opted) member, the Grant will increase by £920.00 per
annum, which is the allowance paid to each member.

Page 12

HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS
17.

There are no specific human resource implications arising from this report.

TECHNOLOGY IMPLICATIONS
18.

There are no specific technology implications associated with this report.

HEALTH IMPLICATIONS
19.

There are no specific health implications arising from this report.

EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS
20.

There are no direct equality implications associated with this report.

CONSULTATION
21.

The report at Appendix 1 was submitted to the Police and Crime Panel on
20th September 2021 and is part of a public agenda pack published on the
website. The approval to proceed would not impact on any section of the
community within Doncaster; it would strengthen the Panel’s ability to
support and scrutinise the Police and Crime Commissioner thus improving
policing for the communities of South Yorkshire.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
22.

Appendix 1 – Report to Police and Crime Panel, 20th September 2021.

REPORT AUTHOR & CONTRIBUTORS
Jason Field, Solicitor and Police and Crime Panel Legal Adviser, Barnsley MBC
Jasonfield2@barnsley.gov.uk
Linda Noble, Service Improvement and Scrutiny Officer / Police and Crime Panel
Support Officer, Barnsley MBC
Lindanoble@barnsley.gov.uk

Debbie Hogg
Director of Corporate Resources

Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 1

Meeting Date

MONDAY 20TH SEPTEMBER 2021

Report of

LEGAL ADVISER TO THE PANEL

Subject

ADDITIONAL INDEPENDENT MEMBER – CONSIDERATION TO
COMMENCE THE PROCESS WITH LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND THE
HOME OFFICE

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
In May 2021 the Panel experienced a considerable turnover of Members, including a new
Chair and Vice-Chair.
With that in mind a suggestion has been made by one of our Independent members that an
additional Independent member, who would serve for a maximum of eight years and a
minimum of four, unless they wished to resign from their role, would provide resilience
through continuity of knowledge and skills, and this would mitigate the turnover of Members
year on year.
RECOMMENDATION(S)
Members of the Police and Crime Panel are recommended to:a)

Consider whether to increase the number of co-opted members to three.

b)

If the Panel resolve to increase membership:
i)

Seek the approval of the four South Yorkshire authorities to amend the Panel
Arrangements to allow three co-opted members (the precise wording to be
approved in consultation with the Chair);

ii)

Seek approval from the Secretary of State for the increase in number of coopted members;

iii)

If approval is granted from the Secretary of State and the four South
Yorkshire authorities, undertake a recruitment exercise for another
independent co-opted member using the same process as undertaken for the
last independent member recruitment

CONTENTS
Main Report

Page 15

BACKGROUND
1.

The Police and Crime Panel has no minimum tenure for elected Members serving on
the Panel. Its predecessor, the Police Authority, had a tenure of four years. This
allowed Members sitting on the Panel to build up a wealth of knowledge around the
Force which, in turn, improved governance and scrutiny.

2.

In 2021 the Panel experienced its greatest turnover of Members for some years, with
seven of the ten elected Members being new to the Panel, and a new Chair and
Vice-Chair. The Panel also recruited to a new independent member role in June
following the resignation of a long-standing Independent member on health grounds.

3.

Our existing Independent member, Professor Adrian James, suggested that the
Panel may wish to consider approaching the Home Office to request permission to
recruit an additional Independent member. This report asks Members to give
consideration to that request.

4.

It should be noted that such an approach to the Home Office requires a business
case and it can take up to three months for them to consider. Given the pandemic in
2020, and the current workload of the Home Office, it may be that this request could
take longer than three months. That said, this should not dissuade the Panel from
making an impartial decision based on the information provided.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS
5.

Under paragraph 3, Schedule 6 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act
2011the Panel can increase the number of co-opted members by resolution, but
subject to approval by the Secretary of State and amendment of Panel
Arrangements. The additional co-opted member can be an independent member or
a councillor.

6

If the Panel wished to appoint an additional councillor as a third co-opted member
several conditions must be met –
 the unanimous approval of the Panel is required;
 a resolution must be passed explaining how the political balance
objective is met and
 the approval of the Secretary of State would be necessary

6.

These requirements are not necessary if the Panel wished to appoint another
Independent member as a third co-opted member.

7.

Should the Panel be granted permission by the Home Office to recruit an additional
member, the Panel Arrangements will need to amended to increase the Panel coopted membership three. Amending Panel Arrangements requires the approval of all
four South Yorkshire Authorities. If approval is not granted by all the authorities the
number of co-opted members will remain at two notwithstanding any Secretary of
State approval

8.

The proposal in this instance is to go out to recruit an independent member as a third
co-opted member rather than appoint a councillor and the recommendation reflects
this at b) iii)

HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
9.

There are no direct health and safety implications associated with this report.

Page 16

EQUALITY & DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS
10.

There are no direct equality and diversity implications associated with this report.

List of background documents
Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 Schedule 6 Paragraphs 3 and 4
Police and Crime Panel (Nominations, Appointments and Notifications) Regulations 2012
Report Author:

Name:

Jason Field, Solicitor and Panel Legal Advisor
jasonfield2@barnsley.gov.uk

Tel no:

-

Page 17

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10
MCA - MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY BOARD
MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON:
MONDAY, 20 SEPTEMBER 2021 AT 10.00 AM
SHEFFIELD CITY REGION, 11 BROAD STREET WEST,
SHEFFIELD S1 2BQ

Present:
Mayor Dan Jarvis MBE (Chair)
Mayor Ros Jones CBE
Councillor Sir Steve Houghton CBE
Councillor Paul Wood
James Muir
Kate Josephs
Dr Dave Smith
Dr Ruth Adams
Martin Swales
Steve Davenport
Gareth Sutton
Stephen Edwards

SCR Mayoral Combined Authority
Doncaster MBC
Barnsley MBC
Sheffield CC
Chair of LEP Board
Sheffield CC
MCA Executive Team
MCA Executive Team
MCA Executive Team
MCA Executive Team / SYPTE
MCA Executive Team
SYPTE

In Attendance:
Shokat Lal
Nigel Slack
Jennifer Carpenter

Barnsley MBC
Member of the Public
Member of the Public

Apologies:
Councillor Chris Read
Councillor Garry Purdy
Councillor Simon Greaves
Councillor Steve Fritchley
Councillor Tricia Gilby
Councillor Alex Dale
Sarah Norman
Damian Allen
Sharon Kemp

1

Rotherham MBC
Derbyshire Dales DC
Bassetlaw DC
Bolsover DC
Chesterfield BC
NE Derbyshire DC
Barnsley MBC
Doncaster BMC
Rotherham MBC

Welcome and Apologies
Mayor Jarvis MBE welcomed everyone to the meeting.
Apologies for absence were noted as above.

Page 19

2

Announcements
Members noted that the Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA) was now officially
called the South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority (SYMCA). Today
marked the first official meeting under the new name. The formal integration of
the South Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive and the MCA was well
underway. This would enable to better invest in and manage the 102 million
passenger journeys that were made in South Yorkshire each year, and to
deliver on the mission to create a stronger, greener and fairer South Yorkshire.
Through the work undertaken with local council partners in the MCA, the Local
Enterprise Partnership and Dame Sarah Storey, the Active Travel
Commissioner, the submission made to the Government’s Sustainable
Transport Settlement process had set out an ambitious £660m programme of
investment. It was envisaged that the investment would turn around the public
transport system, which was not currently considered fit for purpose. It would
provide a 5 year funding pot for transport which would bring together a host of
previously ring fenced, short-term, discrete and narrowly focused funding
allocations. Mayor Jarvis MBE provided assurance that the period of
discussion, negotiation and debate with the Treasury and the Department for
Transport would be entered into with a view to seeking the maximum funding
possible, and to ensure that the Chancellor was aware of the SYMCA’s
priorities ahead of the Government’s Comprehensive Spending Review.
Members noted that the number of COVID-19 cases, hospital admissions and
deaths were higher in comparison to the same time last year. Over 250 people
were currently hospitalised within South Yorkshire due to the pandemic, and
the number was slowly increasing. Mayor Jarvis MBE urged everyone to
continue to be cautious and to continue to wear face masks in public transport
settings.
The red carpet premiere of the new film ‘Everyone’s Talking About Jamie’ had
recently been held in Sheffield. The film had been shot by a Sheffield company,
and it was based on a production from Sheffield Theatres. Mayor Jarvis MBE
had supported the South Yorkshire Cultural and Creative Industries Summit
and he had promoted the £1m of funding that was being put into the sector.

3

Urgent Items
None.

4

Items to be Considered in the Absence of Public and Press
None.

5

Voting Rights for Non-constituent Members
It was noted that Non-Constituent Members were welcome to participate in the
discussion of every item on the agenda.

6

Declarations of Interest by individual Members in relation to any item of
business on the agenda
Page 20

Mayor Jarvis MBE declared an interest in the matters to be considered at
agenda Item 14 entitled ‘Programme Approvals’ which may relate to the
Barnsley central constituency.
Councillor Sir Houghton CBE declared an interest in the matters to be
considered at agenda Item 14 entitled ‘Programme Approvals’ in relation to any
schemes relating to Barnsley, by virtue of being the Leader of Barnsley
Metropolitan Borough Council.
Mayor Jones CBE declared an interest in the matters to be considered at
agenda Item 14 entitled ‘Programme Approvals’ in relation to any schemes
relating to Doncaster, by virtue of being the Mayor of Doncaster Metropolitan
Borough Council.
Councillor Wood declared an interest in the matters to be considered at agenda
Item 14 entitled ‘Programme Approvals’ in relation to any schemes relating to
Sheffield City Council.
In respect of the decisions related to agenda Item 14, to the extent that any
declarations of interest mean that the meeting would not be quorate due to a
Member disclosing a non-pecuniary interest in the item by virtue of being the
Leader of the recipient Local Authority, the Monitoring Officer has granted a
Dispensation under Schedule 3 of the Members Code of Conduct (Paragraph
(B)(i).
7

Reports from and questions by members
None

8

Receipt of Petitions
J Carpenter from Sheffield Climate Alliance, which would be renamed as South
Yorkshire Climate Alliance, presented a petition which contained 197
signatories entitled “Make our buses free during COP26”. J Carpenter read out
the following statement which accompanied the petition:“Transport is the largest source of climate pollution in the UK, accounting for
over a third of annual omissions. We need radical change to how people
travel, cutting greenhouse gas emissions in order to avoid catastrophic climate
change and helping to reduce air pollution, road congestion and obesity. To do
this, we need our public transport systems to become more effective, serve all
our communities and be far cheaper. Then people are more likely to choose
public rather than private transport. COP26 takes place in November 2021 in
Glasgow where World Leaders will meet for the 26 th time to discuss the climate
emergency which threatens us all. We need to put the pressure on to make
sure they take the decisions needed to avert catastrophe.
We, the undersigned, call on the South Yorkshire Mayor and the Combined
Authority to take the measures necessary to ensure that busses across South
Yorkshire are fare free for everyone during the two weeks of COP26 (1
November – 12 November 2021). This would highlight to everyone the need
Page 21

for radical action to tackle this climate emergency”.
Mayor Jarvis MBE welcomed the petition received from Sheffield Climate
Alliance and their commitment to improving the bus network for people and the
planet. The Combined Authority had pledged to make major transformations to
the bus network and public transport through millions of pounds of investment
in the network. A total of £6m had been invested to extend reduced fares for
18 – 21 year olds. A total of £660m was sought from the Government through
its City Region Sustainable Transport Settlement (CRSTS), subject to
negotiation with the Treasury and DfT a substantial part of this would put buses
at the heart of the transport system by allowing millions of pounds to be
invested to tackle local congestion hotspots, to give buses priority on the roads
and to make sure that the transport interchanges and bus stops were fit for
purpose. Although this was hugely ambitious, Mayor Jarvis MBE believed that
the Bus Services Improvement Plan would provide the basis for the
forthcoming submission to the Government for Enhanced Partnership funding,
to which it was intended to run a thorough public consultation.
Mayor Jarvis MBE commented that he would like nothing more than to make
the bus travel free during COP26, but that the minimum estimated cost of
approximately £2.6m of revenue funding was extremely difficult. He provided
reassurance that the SYMCA would look at the wider issues of affordability,
concessions and services through the Bus Services Improvement Plan and the
Enhanced Partnership proposal.
9

Public Questions
The following public question was received from N Slack:“It is becoming clear that the ‘assurances’ given to the Mayor by the University
of Sheffield, over the closure of the Archaeology Department, are not worth the
breath expended in the expression of them. Evidence that students are
choosing to take up Post Graduate courses in other Universities, rather than
Sheffield, is continuing to accrue and the reason given by these students is the
lack of a full Archaeology Department in Sheffield. As a result the Post
Graduate courses will be under subscribed and no doubt this will be used as an
opportunity to eliminate these surviving elements as well. This will lead to the
loss of, not only skilled and experienced staff that bring prestige to the
University, the City of Sheffield and the region beyond but also the students
with exactly the sort of skills and employment opportunities the region needs.
He included an example of the recent impact of the University of Sheffield
Archaeology in the New York Times article:https://www.nytimes.com/2021/09/11/world/europe/bronze-age-coffin-golfcourse.html
As a side note, this move could also create obstacles to the economic
development of the region when a lack of staff for the archaeological
investigations, that must be delivered before redevelopment of so many sites
these days, are delayed with the consequent knock on effect for the region’s
employment prospects and the developers themselves.
Page 22

Will the Mayor engage further with the University of Sheffield to safeguard
these jobs, and retain the skills and the international impact of this department
for the future reputation of the University as something other than a big
business with their eye solely on profit and willing to sacrifice their educational
imperative for money?”
In response, Mayor Jarvis MBE acknowledged the enormous cultural,
intellectual and economic contribution of the University of Sheffield. The
University was a strong advocate in the city for arts, culture and heritage,
sponsoring many of the brilliant independent festivals that make the city and
the wider region a vibrant place. He was grateful to the University of Sheffield,
as an anchor institution, which contributed to the advancement of the region.
He shared the concerns raised by N Slack, whilst recognising that the
University of Sheffield, like all Higher Education Institutions, operated in a
competitive commercial environment. He would raise the issue again with the
University of Sheffield, to ensure that the vital contributions that the department
had made to the region were not lost.
10

Minutes of the meeting held on 26th July 2021
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 26 July 2021 be agreed
as a true record.

11

Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP)
A report was presented which provided an update on the workpackage one
(WP1) outputs that would be used to develop the initial Bus Service
Improvement Plan (BSIP) submission in October 2021. The outputs produced
by WP1 related to improving the region’s bus services and by incorporating
them into the initial BSIP, they would support the recovery of the bus system
post-COVID.
Given the tight timescales for submission of the BSIP and with the submission
date falling between the MCA meetings in September and November 2021, it
was agreed that submission of the BSIP was delegated to the MCA Chief
Executive in consultation with the South Yorkshire Leaders and the Mayor.
Councillor Sir Houghton CBE emphasised the need to ensure that the long and
short term aims were correctly integrated.
A Leaders’ workshop would be convened to discuss the matter further.
RESOLVED – That the Board considered the content of the report and the
outputs from WP1 which would shape the next stages of work, to provide a
view on the preferred approach to the initial Bus Service Improvement Plan
(BSIP), as set out in Section 3 of the report.

12

South Yorkshire Digital Infrastructure Strategy
A report was submitted which presented the Final Draft South Yorkshire Digital
Infrastructure Strategy.
Page 23

In 2020, the consultant Arcadis had been commissioned to provide support to
the MCA and partners to prepare a South Yorkshire Digital Infrastructure
Strategy. The SCR Housing and Infrastructure Board had developed the Final
Draft Strategy and had recommended its approval. The LEP Board had also
endorsed and supported the Draft Strategy.
Mayor Jarvis MBE expressed his thanks to the Members and officers from
across the South Yorkshire councils for their input into the Draft Strategy.
The South Yorkshire Digital Infrastructure Strategy sought to address the
following key challenges:




Over the next 5 year period, a total of 160,000 premises within South
Yorkshire had not been scheduled to receive ‘gigabit-capable’ broadband
by the industry.
A gigabit broadband connectivity would be rolled out throughout South
Yorkshire, to build upon the success of the Superfast South Yorkshire
broadband programme.
To ensure that local businesses were aware of and to exploit the 5G
opportunities, and to ensure a more consistent regional approach.
To address the affordability and digital poverty of the broadband services.

RESOLVED – That the Board:i)

Considered and approved the Draft South Yorkshire Digital Infrastructure
Strategy.

ii) Delegated to the Head of Paid Service in liaison with the Housing and
Infrastructure Board Co-Chairs to sign off the final designed document.
Requested that the Housing and Infrastructure Board prepared a Delivery Plan
for the Digital Infrastructure Strategy.
13

Final Accounts & Annual Governance Statement (AGS)
A report was presented which sought approval of the Annual Statement of
Accounts and the Annual Governance Statement for 2020/21. The Accounts
and Audit Regulations 2015 required the MCA to prepare an Annual Statement
of Accounts, and to undertake an annual review of the effectiveness of systems
of internal controls through the publication of an Annual Governance
Statement.
Members noted that the auditor’s findings had led to an unqualified opinion,
with no matters to report on the value for money statement. The SCR Audits
and Standards Committee had endorsed the Accounts.
The Board noted the national issue in relation to pensions, and additional
testing was currently underway by the auditor. Subject to the additional testing,
it was envisaged that the Accounts would be approved by the end of
September 2021. In the event of any further matters arising from the additional
testing, it was proposed to revert to the Board with the Accounts.
Page 24

RESOLVED – That the Board:i)

Approved the Annual Statement of Accounts.

ii) Approved the Annual Governance Statement.
Noted that should any late adjustments be required to the Accounts, the
documents would be resubmitted to the Audit and Standards Committee and
the Board.
14

Programme Approvals
A report was presented which requested the progression of twelve schemes,
early release of development cost funding subject to conditions to be set out in
the Assurance Summaries, and approval of two project change requests. The
report also requested delegated authority to enter into legal agreements for the
Community Renewal Fund with the local authorities and partners due to a delay
in the decision announcement by Government and the acceptance of grant
from the Superfast South Yorkshire programme with delegation to the thematic
boards to develop programme ideas for their respective areas and approve
programme ideas in line with agreed board delegation limits.
Mayor Jarvis MBE welcomed the host of schemes coming forward for approval,
and he acknowledged the huge amount of effort that had been undertaken
across a number of the thematic boards to reach this point.
RESOLVED – That the Board considered and approved:i)

Progression of “iPort” project to full approval and award of £5.46m grant to
South Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive subject to the conditions
set out in the Assurance Summary attached at Appendix A1 to the report.

ii) Progression of “Stations Access Package” to full approval and award of
£6.17m grant Doncaster Borough Council subject to the conditions set out
in the Assurance Summary attached at Appendix A2 to the report.
iii) Progression of “Gene Therapy Innovation and Manufacturing Centre” to full
approval and award of £1.5m grant funding to the University of Sheffield
(UOS) subject to the conditions set out in the Assurance Summary
attached at Appendix A3 to the report.
iv) Progression of “Project D0001” to full approval and award of £2m loan and
£5.16m grant subject to the conditions set out in the Assurance Summary
attached at Appendix A4 to the report.
v) Progression of “Magna Tinsley OBC” to FBC and the release of
development cost funding of up to £845k to Sheffield City Council subject
to the conditions set out in the Assurance Summary attached at Appendix
B1 to the report.
vi) Progression of “Unity OBC” to proceed to FBC and the release of
Page 25

development cost funding up to £50k to Doncaster Metropolitan Borough
Council subject to the conditions set out in the Assurance Summary
attached at Appendix B2 to the report.
vii) Progression of “Nether Edge Wedge OBC” to proceed to FBC and the
release of development cost funding up to £1.38m to Sheffield City Council
subject to the conditions set out in the Assurance Summary attached at
Appendix B3 to the report.
viii) Progression of “Broom Road Cycleways OBC” to proceed to FBC and
release of development cost funding up to £211k to Rotherham
Metropolitan Borough Council subject to the conditions set out in the
Assurance Summary attached at Appendix B4 to the report.
ix) Progression of “Doncaster Housing Retrofit SBC” to proceed to OBC
subject to the conditions set out in the Assurance Summary attached at
Appendix C1 to the report.
x) Progression of “Glassworks – Enhanced Capital Contributions SBC” to
proceed to OBC for Gainshare funding to BMBC (Barnsley Metropolitan
Borough Council) subject to the conditions set out in the Assurance
Summary attached at Appendix C2 to the report.
xi) Progression of “Fargate Future High Street Fund SBC” to proceed to OBC
for Gainshare funding to SCC (Sheffield City Council) subject to the
conditions set out in the Assurance Summary attached at Appendix C3 to
the report.
xii) Progression of “Sheffield Heart of the City 2 SBC” to proceed to OBC for
Gainshare funding to SCC (Sheffield City Council) subject to the conditions
set out in the Assurance Summary attached at Appendix C4 to the report.
xiii) Two project change requests as detailed in Appendix D to the report.
xiv) Acceptance of grant of £7.7m of which £1.18m to be returned to the MCA
this financial year and delegated Authority to the Thematic Boards to
approve programme ideas for their respective area, in line with the agreed
board delegation limits with regards to the Superfast South Yorkshire
broadband programme.
Delegated authority be given to the Head of Paid Service in consultation with
the Section 73 and Monitoring Officer to enter into legal agreements for the
schemes 1 – 13 covered above and enter into the necessary legal grant
agreements with the Local Authorities and other delivery partners for the
delivery of the Community Renewal funded projects.
15

Budget and Business Plan Development 2022/23
A report was submitted which provided an outline on the process for developing
the budget and supporting business plan for the new financial year. The report
noted the challenging environment in which the process was taking place, the
policy decisions that would drive the financial strategy, and the need for
Page 26

engagement with partners.
Members would be provided with the detailed budget assumptions at the next
Board meeting scheduled to be held in November 2021. It was noted that
some of the decisions to be taken by the Board during the Autumn months
would have a significant impact on the financial plan moving forwards. Work
continued to progress around the investment strategy in particular the codesign and co-development with partners.
Mayor Jarvis MBE was pleased to observe that the paper was presented to the
Board at this early stage, which started the business plan and budgeting
process.
RESOLVED – That the Board:i)

Noted the budget and business planning process being undertaken within
the MCA.

ii) Noted the significant uncertainties shaping the process.
Noted the proposed approval timeline.
16

Delegated Authority Report
A report was presented which provided an update on the decisions and
delegations made by the MCA, and the decisions and delegations made by the
Thematic Boards.
RESOLVED – That Members noted the decisions and delegations made.

In accordance with Combined Authority’s Constitution/Terms of Reference for the Board,
Board decisions need to be ratified by the Head of Paid Services (or their nominee) in
consultation with the Chair of the Board. Accordingly, the undersigned has consulted with
the Chair and hereby ratifies the decisions set out in the above minutes.

Signed
Name
Position
Date

Page 27

This page is intentionally left blank

MCA - LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP
MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON:
THURSDAY, 9 SEPTEMBER 2021 AT 11.00 AM
VIRTUALLY

Present:
James Muir (Chair)
Gemma Smith
Neil MacDonald
Angela Foulkes
Peter Kennan
Richard Stubbs
Joe Chetcuti
Bill Adams
Professor Dave Petley
Michael Faulks
Mayor Dan Jarvis MBE
Mayor Ros Jones CBE
Dr Dave Smith
Helen Kemp
Martin Swales
Nici Pickering

Private Sector LEP Board Member
Private Sector LEP Board Member
Private Sector LEP Board Member
Private Sector LEP Board Member
Private Sector LEP Board Member
Private Sector LEP Board Member
Private Sector LEP Board Member
TUC Representative
University of Sheffield
Co-opted Private Sector LEP Board Member
SCR Mayoral Combined Authority
Doncaster MBC
MCA Executive Team
MCA Executive Team
MCA Executive Team
MCA Executive Team

In Attendance:
Councillor Julie Grocutt
Paul Johnson
Justin Homer
Sam Pollard
Christian Foster
Eugene Walker
Mark Harrop

Sheffield CC
MCA Executive Team
BEIS
BEIS
Doncaster MBC
Sheffield CC
Guest

Apologies:
Nigel Brewster
Alexa Greaves
Professor Chris Husbands
Karen Beardsley
Cathy Travers
Tanwer Khan
Dan Fell
Councillor Chris Read
Councillor Sir Steve Houghton CBE
Dr Ruth Adams
Sharon Kemp

Private Sector LEP Board Member
Private Sector LEP Board Member
Representative for Higher Education
Private Sector LEP Board Member
Private Sector LEP Board Member
Private Sector LEP Board Member
Doncaster Chamber
Rotherham MBC
Barnsley MBC
MCA Executive Team
Rotherham MBC
Page 29

Kate Josephs
Damian Allen
Sarah Norman

1

Sheffield CC
Doncaster MBC
Barnsley MBC

Welcome and Apologies
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting. He welcomed Sam Pollard from
BEIS, who would be attending the meeting in an observer capacity.
Apologies for absence were noted as above. C Marriott confirmed that the
meeting was quorate.

2

Declarations of Interest
In relation to agenda Item 6 entitled ‘South Yorkshire Digital Infrastructure
Strategy’ Councillor Grocutt declared a personal interest, as her son worked for
Virgin Media.
There were no declarations of interest in relation to any activity since the last
formal Board meeting.
There were no declarations of interest in relation to any forthcoming activity.

3

Notes of last meeting
The notes of the previous meeting held on 1 July 2021 were agreed to be an
accurate record.

4

Inclusion Plan for South Yorkshire
A report was presented which provided an update on the development of the
South Yorkshire Inclusion Plan, together with progress notes on the Employer
Contract and Progressive Procurement themes. The MCA and LEP had
adopted inclusion within the SEP, which was one of the three pillars of the
policy objectives that outlined the plan for stronger, greener and fairer
economic growth. At the Board meeting held in May 2021, Members had
agreed the approach and parameters for the Inclusion Plan.
Development of the South Yorkshire Inclusion Plan had continued during the
summer period. Following an engagement phase with the LEP Board
Members, it was envisaged that a substantive progress report would be
presented to the next Board meeting.
Members noted the progress that had been made in relation to the key themes
of employer contract, progressive procurement policy, health and wellbeing,
and inclusive innovation. It was noted that most of the progress had been
made in relation to the employer contract and the progressive procurement
policy. It was envisaged that once the employer contract had been agreed, that
this would guide the manner in which the work was undertaken with all of the
organisations, in particular the private sector business that the MCA and LEP
undertook business with.
Page 30

The Board Members had been invited to attend a workshop which would be
held during w/c 13 September 2021 which would enable further engagement on
the Inclusion Plan. Following which, the matter would be discussed with
business leaders at the SCR Business Recovery Group, business
representative groups and others. Work was currently underway with an
external affairs team to select a cross section of businesses and business
leaders to undertake detailed sessions, and to report back to the Board.
Since the last Board meeting engagement had been made with the LEP Board
Members, local authority officers, universities, third sector partners and
businesses, and bids had recently been received to commission a piece of
work around the health assets review. It was envisaged that an appointment
would shortly be made, with a view to the work commencing in the upcoming
week or so. This would enable the health and wellbeing theme to develop
quickly. In relation to inclusive innovation, the policy paper had been drafted
and further work would be undertaken. The Board would be provided with an
update in due course.
R Stubbs requested a further understanding in relation to employee
engagement. He sought clarity around the health and wellbeing objective,
which he considered that the key areas were for a better delivery of the health
care services, recognising that most of this would be derived from outside of
the control of the NHS, and how to grow the health and life sciences supply
chain centre within the region. He considered that the work that was articulated
within the SEP related to growing the economic centre as a key anchor for the
employers within the region. He requested a consistent use of terminology.
In response, F Kumi-Ampofo referred to the paper that was currently being
developed and to agree the role of the MCA across the key areas as outlined
by R Stubbs. In relation to the SEP, the health sector and the business of
health would be engaged in innovative activity. The commission that had been
made for work around the health assets review would enable a better
understanding together with the potential for grow. The COVID-19 pandemic
had highlighted the fact that there would not be an economy without a healthy
population. The MCA and the LEP would work with partners in order to close
the health outcomes gaps that currently existed which linked into the economic
outcomes that fell within their remit.
J Muir considered that it would be helpful to include R Stubbs in the future
discussion, in particular in relation to the health and wellbeing agenda.
B Adams expressed his thanks to F Kumi-Ampofo and his team for the
comprehensive report. The Inclusion Agenda, which formed part of the rational
from the SEP, would attempt to make the economy fairer and improve the lives
around the region.
J Muir referred to the necessity to establish a framework that pointed towards
good employer practice. It was noted that those companies that engaged with
employee participation in seeking to steer the company were usually the most
productive and profitable. The MCA had pioneered a number of initiatives
within the region, and the employee contract was well advanced. He was
Page 31

confident that through the process that had been agreed, that matters would
progress onto the consultative stage. He considered that the health and
wellbeing theme required the most discussion moving forwards. He wished to
encourage a debate on the innovation side to involve collaboration between the
public and private sectors, the anchor institutions and the universities to ensure
that the Inclusion Strategy was inclusive geographically.
Members noted the necessity to ascertain a mechanism to ensure that
Doncaster and Barnsley benefited on a place basis for investments for
innovation that led to industrialisation, commercialisation and job growth.
Mayor Jarvis MBE considered that this was a very important piece of work
given the long standing inequalities within South Yorkshire that had been
exacerbated by the COVID-19 pandemic. He welcomed the focus of the LEP
Board on the matter, and he looked forward to a progress update being
provided to the LEP Board meeting that was scheduled to be held in November
2021.
RESOLVED – That the Board:i)

Considered the progress made to date.

Agreed to lead the engagement phase of the Employer Contract theme (and
the Inclusive Innovation theme later).
5

Mayoral Update
A report was presented which provided Members with an update on key
Mayoral activity relating to the economic agenda.
Updates were provided on:




The Comprehensive Spending Review, Integrated Rail Plan and Levelling
Up.
City Region Sustainable Transport Settlement Bid.
Local skills support for South Yorkshire’s Learners.
South Yorkshire Health and Wellbeing Mayoral Community Fund.

On behalf of the Board, Mayor Jarvis MBE wished to extend his warmest
congratulations to Dame Sarah Storey, SCR’s Active Travel Commissioner who
had recently become Britain’s most successful Paralympic athlete in both
swimming and cycling. Dame Storey continued to undertake extremely
important work for South Yorkshire in promoting the active travel agenda. It
was envisaged to hold a physical event to mark Dame Storey’s recent success.
The LEP Board Members would be invited to the event.
Over the upcoming couple of weeks, Mayor Jarvis MBE would focus upon reengaging with the Government on the levelling up agenda. He considered that
the Comprehensive Spending Review at the end of October 2021 would be a
critical point for the Government to demonstrate and evidence their practical
commitment to the levelling up agenda by investing in the regions and the
mayoral combined authorities. He expressed concern that the details of the
Page 32

Integrated Rail Plan were still unavailable. However, he would continue to
make the case to Government to publish the Integrated Rail Plan, which was
critically important in relation to transport infrastructure which had the potential
to significantly benefit the regional economies.
The Board noted the importance of the work underway for the SCR Sustainable
Transport Settlement Bid, and the huge effort made by the SCR team and all of
the local authorities to draw together the bid, which would be submitted to the
Department for Transport on 15 September 2021.
It was anticipated that the Government would confirm the outcome of the
previously submitted levelling up fund bid during the announcement of the
Comprehensive Spending Review. Mayor Jarvis MBE had a debate scheduled
in Parliament later in the week, which would specifically relate to the levelling
up agenda, which would be responded to by the Treasury. Members noted that
as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Government faced massive fiscal
pressures.
A discussion had recently been held with Mayor Jarvis MBE, Dr Smith and
others with Neil O’Brien, who had been charged by the Prime Minister to take
forward the levelling up agenda. The SCR was currently drawing up a
Comprehensive Spending Review proposal to highlight the key areas for
investment.
In relation to the Comprehensive Spending Review, P Kennan suggested that
the Board should undertake a joint communication with Mayor Jarvis MBE over
the upcoming few weeks, in order to push the business case alongside the
political case.
J Muir agreed to P Kennan’s suggestion, however he suggested that it should
relate to supporting the input into the Comprehensive Spending Review and to
ensure that there was a collective voice. He was happy to engage further with
P Kennan on the matter. He requested Dr Smith to liaise with Mayor Jarvis
MBE on the matter, with a view to reporting back to the Board on the actions
that had been taken in relation to the communications.
Mayor Jarvis MBE was confident that the SCR product submitted to the
Government would be strong, however he highlighted the need for a common
strategy. The Comprehensive Spending Review was pivotal to the SCR which
would set out the Government’s investment plans for the next 3 years.
Dr Smith suggested that this should be considered as a campaign, rather than
as a one off set of statements. He did not consider that the individual
submissions to the Treasury by the end of September 2021 would make a
great impact on the fiscal position. He considered that the larger opportunity
for the SCR was to attempt to influence the outcome of the CSR in terms of the
Government’s own policies for levelling up, the transport forums and the UK
share prosperity fund, which would lead to funding for levelling up and the
associated innovation strategy material which would be reflected within the
CSO.
J Muir welcomed the engagement of Mayor Jarvis MBE with the MP’s on the
Page 33

matter. He considered that the private sector Board Members could undertake
further engagement, which could essentially enable the Board to reach all of
the MP’s within South Yorkshire. He suggested that Mayor Jarvis MBE, Dr
Smith and himself could consider targeting specific individuals, in order to push
the agenda.
J Muir expressed his thanks to Mayor Jarvis MBE for his presentation.
RESOLVED – That Members noted the update.
6

Government Innovation Strategy
A report was submitted in relation to the Government Innovation Strategy which
had been launched at the AMRC in July 2021, and had replaced the Industrial
Strategy. The Innovation Strategy had a clear and strong link to the SEP,
which cemented the LEP’s strategic alignment with the Government on
innovation. Outlined within the Innovation Strategy were plans to cement the
UK’s position as a world-leader in science, research and innovation, with a long
term plan to boost private sector investment across the UK. The long term
vision was make the UK a global hub for innovation by 2035.
Members were referred to the three main areas for the emerging South
Yorkshire innovation approach:



To create the enabling conditions for innovation driven growth – R&D,
clustering, ecosystems, technology deployment within business, business
to business activity, and catapults etc.
To conversion/realising the economic benefit locally and inclusively.
The clarity, persuasiveness and credibility of the South Yorkshire story
and experience.

The report set out three broad options:



Option 1. To do nothing - adopt a passive approach, and to wait and see
if there was a role for the LEP’s.
Option 2. To do something – within the context of developing delivery
plans for the SEP.
Option 3. To do more – same as Option 2, but also to mount a lobbying
campaign to seek to be a commissioning/investment partner with
Government, especially to areas with clear links i.e. Advanced Materials
and Manufacturing.

The matter had been discussed with the Co-Chairs and the SCR Business
Recovery and Growth Board. At that meeting, Members had not considered it
appropriate to adopt a passive approach. They had also agreed that a focused
innovation board should be established to enable South Yorkshire to become a
leader in innovation, and that it would be necessary to know which schemes
were available for potential funding.
P Kennan referred to a recent discussion with other private sector Board
Members who had shown a great deal of support for Option 3. He hoped that
the Leaders and officers had observed the enthusiasm, with a view to devoting
Page 34

financial resource to appoint external consultants, if it was not possible to
undertake everything in-house, and to embrace Option 3.
Mayor Jones CBE commented that most of the work was undertaken within the
local authorities and that the MCA would pull together the bids. She
considered that there was a need to lobby the Government for an appropriate
method in which they notified of potential funding. She also considered that
there should be lobbying in the medium and long term, in order to achieve
proper schemes that could be delivered appropriately for the area.
P Kennan was aware of the pressures that were faced by the officers at DMBC,
and he considered that resourcing was a problem across all of the local
authorities. He hoped that resourcing could be found to deal with the issue
under Option 3.
In relation to the work undertaken by the MCA Officers on the South Yorkshire
branding and the stories, J Chetcuti suggested that it would be helpful to
ensure that the work undertaken within one section of the MCA was fed into the
other areas. He also suggested that objectives should be set to ensure that
everyone agreed the content of the stories.
J Muir suggested that the Board should endorse Option 3, as highlighted within
the report. There was a need to establish a way for greater focus on what
drives innovation at the source. There was a clear deficit within the UK PLC
which needed to be addressed, and collaboration of the two education
institutions was required to provide support. He considered that the largest
issue to be addressed, which could be achieved uniquely within South
Yorkshire or to take a leading stance, was to determine how to bring
collaboration between the private sector, public sector and the academic
sector. It would be necessary for South Yorkshire to stand out as a centre of
excellence and a source of innovation in specific areas, and to align those
priorities with the ambitions of the anchor institutions in terms of the
competencies that they had and those that were need to enable them to grow.
Therefore he considered that the MCA, which had financial resources at its
disposal, should be prepared to invest a proportion of funding into innovation
projects which translated into industrialised and job creation. This would
present an opportunity to deal with the Government in terms of co-funding on
the public sector side, which would enable leverage of the private sector. He
anticipated that there would be a need for resource focus to specifically drive
the innovation forward.
A further conversation would be held between Mayor Jones CBE and N
MacDonald in relation to the context of business growth.
RESOLVED – That the Board:i) Reviewed the summary of the Government’s Innovation Strategy.
ii) Considered the emerging approach on innovation, provided a steer, and
set out what role it would play within this.
Considered how it could galvanise activity to deliver more innovative start-ups,
Page 35

scale-ups and clusters.
7

South Yorkshire Digital Infrastructure Strategy
A report was submitted which presented the draft South Yorkshire Digital
Infrastructure Strategy. In 2020, the consultant Arcadis had been
commissioned to provide support to the MCA/LEP and partners to prepare a
South Yorkshire Digital Infrastructure Strategy. The SCR Housing and
Infrastructure Board had developed the Final Draft Strategy and had
recommended its approval, with a lead input provided by the Board’s Co-Chair
LEP representative.
The Board noted the three areas within the SEP which identified the digital
targets and ambitions i.e. digital infrastructure, digital skills, innovation and
business support. The COVID-19 pandemic had highlighted the importance of
having a strong digital connectivity for businesses and communities. Poor
connectivity within communities had impacted upon access to training,
education and job opportunities. As part of the process, engagement had been
made with many different private sector Board Members, to ensure that the
needs of all different types of businesses were addressed moving forwards.
The South Yorkshire Digital Infrastructure Strategy sought to address the
following key challenges:




Over the next 5 year period, a total of 160,000 premises within South
Yorkshire had not been scheduled to receive ‘gigabit-capable’ broadband
by the industry.
A gigabit broadband connectivity would be rolled out throughout South
Yorkshire, to build upon the success of the Superfast South Yorkshire
broadband programme.
To ensure that local businesses were aware of and to exploit the 5G
opportunities, and to ensure a more consistent regional approach.
To address the affordability and digital poverty of broadband services.

The Board was provided with a short presentation on the Digital Infrastructure
Strategy. Members noted the following key points:






The vision to provide a gigabit digital infrastructure that accelerated new
social and economic possibilities for all of the people and businesses of
South Yorkshire.
To ensure that the superfast broadband and 4G success of South
Yorkshire was repeated for gigabit broadband and 5G.
To support the social and economic priorities as set out within the SEP.
To create an inclusive platform that would enable better outcomes for all
sections of society.
To take a governance and data driven approach in order maximise the
digital potential of South Yorkshire.
Ensure that South Yorkshire was positioned as a centre of applied digital
innovation.

The SCR Housing and Infrastructure Board would discuss the delivery of the
Digital Infrastructure Strategy at their next meeting in October 2021.
Page 36

In response to a question received from Professor Petley, C Blackburn
commented that the Digital Infrastructure Strategy would cover the next 5
years, with the potential to cover up to the next 10 year period. It was
considered that the policies within the Digital Infrastructure Strategy would still
be relevant in several years’ time.
Dr Smith expressed his thanks to G Smith and the SCR Housing and
Infrastructure Board for the work undertaken. The MCA Members were keen to
understand the delivery of the Digital Infrastructure Strategy, whilst ensuring
smart implementation and to recognise that a great deal of the agenda would
be delivered by the market.
M Faulks applauded the efforts that had been made, although he expressed
concern that matters had not progressed quickly enough. He considered that
in order to achieve what was required in terms of the SEP for growth and
innovation that the Digital Infrastructure Strategy should be at the foundation.
He encouraged Members to fully support the Digital Infrastructure Strategy.
J Muir considered that coherence was missing across a number of different
areas that related to digital. It was noted that the market appetite would
increase if there was a specific and dedicated skills strategy with a developing
skills set. The SCR would provide advice and consultation to local businesses,
in order to improve their digital understanding and to build upon their digital
capability.
J Muir suggested that the matter should be considered further at a future Board
meeting, with a view to revisiting the infrastructure. Dr Smith agreed to the
suggestion. J Muir requested M Faulks, J Chetcuti, G Smith, A Foulkes and
Professor Petley to create a potential forum to discuss matters further.
RESOLVED – That the Board considered and endorsed the draft South
Yorkshire Digital Infrastructure Strategy.
8

Business Recovery and Growth Board Summary Paper
A report was submitted which provided an update across the range of activity
delivered under the direction and oversight of the SCR Business Recovery and
Growth Board.
Members received an update in relation to the delivery and progress of the
following Renewal Action Plan priorities:

Priority 1 – A Relief Fund, providing financial support to businesses.
Business Advisors had been embedded within the four local authorities
with the remit to ensure that businesses were supported in accessing the
grants. A capital scheme had been established to encourage businesses
to consider productivity which would enable them to thrive beyond the
COVID-19 pandemic. A total of 642 jobs were anticipated to be created
across South Yorkshire. Evaluation was underway with a view to reporting
back to the Board on future activity.
Page 37



Priority 2 – Extending regional access to advisory and specialist support.
Engagement had been made with a total of 400 businesses across South
Yorkshire, 270 of which were micro businesses and 130 businesses were
small to medium sized enterprises and large companies.



Priority 3 – Access to digital adoption and upskilling support.
It was intended to present a soft-landing programme to the next Board
meeting.



Priority 4 – Supply development support.
Supply Chain Advisors had been appointed within three of the local
authority teams, with a view to appointing a Supply Chain Advisor within
SCC.
Sheffield University students had undertaken a supply chain mapping
exercise. Analysis would be provided to the Board in due course.



Priority 5 – Marketing activity – positive messaging and comms on
initiatives.
A great deal of marketing activity had been undertaken around the positive
messages with businesses, to include promoting events with stakeholders
and partners.

Members noted that the Peer Networks contract had been awarded the
Winning Pitch, to deliver eight cohorts of peer network support to SME’s within
South Yorkshire.
The Board had previously discussed the business pipeline and the projects that
were being delivered at pace. The first two approvals would be presented to
the MCA meeting that was scheduled to be held in September 2021.
International activity had been effected by the COVID-19 pandemic. A Virtual
Trade Mission had been held during April 2021, where a total of 47 Growth
Champions meetings had been held. It was anticipated that the South
Yorkshire India Advisory Board meeting would be held in November 2021. A
South Yorkshire China Advisory Board would be developed, but this had been
postponed due to the pandemic.
J Muir expressed his thanks to H Kemp and her team, N MacDonald and Mayor
Jones CBE for their efforts and time involved in holding a series of SCR
Business Recovery and Growth Board Meetings to support a number of
initiatives.
N MacDonald also expressed his thanks to H Kemp and her team for the work
undertaken. In relation to the employment contracts, he commented that the
projects had been discussed at the Assurance Panel and the SCR Business
Recovery and Growth Board, and communication had been made with those
companies.
Page 38

RESOLVED – That the Board noted the activity to date on delivering the
Employer section of the Renewal Action Plan and the developments in
business support and international activity.
9

Chief Executive's Update
A report was presented which provided Members with a general update on
activity being undertaken by the LEP outside of the agenda items under
discussion.
Updates were provided on:






Northern Powerhouse Investment Fund.
MADE Smarter Review.
Quarterly Economic Survey (QES).
Support for the LEP Review.
South Yorkshire Music Board.
Business Advisory Group.

In relation to the Northern Powerhouse Investment Fund, Dr Smith expressed
his thanks to N MacDonald who represented the LEP on the NPIF Strategic
Oversight Board.
J Muir and P Kennan commented that they would be interested to receive the
results of the Quarterly Economic Survey, which had included questions
regarding cyber-crime and other topical items.
RESOLVED – That Members noted the update.

I, the undersigned, confirm that this is a true and accurate record of the meeting.
Signed
Name
Position
Date

Page 39

This page is intentionally left blank

SOUTH YORKSHIRE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY
13 SEPTEMBER 2021

PRESENT:

Councillor T Damms (Chair)
Councillor C Hogarth (Vice-Chair)
Councillors: S Sansome, T Smith, S Ball, J Paszek,
D Hutchinson, S Ayris, R Frost and C Ross
DCFO C Kirby, ACO T Carlin and S Booth
(South Yorkshire Fire & Rescue Service)
G Kirk, M Potter, L Noble and M McCoole
(Barnsley MBC)

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor P Garbutt,
Councillor B Johnson, Dr A Billings, M McCarthy, N Copley,
S Norman, CFO A Johnson and M Buttery
1

APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were noted as above.

2

ANNOUNCEMENTS
None.

3

URGENT ITEMS
None.

4

ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS
None.

5

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST BY INDIVIDUAL MEMBERS IN RELATION TO
ANY ITEM OF BUSINESS ON THE AGENDA
None.

6

REPORTS BY MEMBERS
On 5 August 2021, Councillor Frost had attended the SYFR Prince’s Trust Dearne
Team 6 Graduation Ceremony at Montgomery Hall in Wath, which he had found to
be very interesting and informative. He encouraged Members to attend future
events.

7

RECEIPT OF PETITIONS
None.
Page 41

Fire and Rescue Authority
Monday 13 September 2021

8

TO RECEIVE ANY QUESTIONS OR COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PUBLIC,
OR COMMUNICATIONS SUBMITTED BY THE CHAIR OR THE CLERK AND TO
PASS SUCH RESOLUTIONS THEREON AS THE STANDING ORDERS PERMIT
AND AS MAY BE DEEMED EXPEDIENT
None.

9

MINUTES OF THE AUTHORITY MEETING HELD ON 26 JULY 2021
Members noted that Items 1 and 3 on the Action Log could now be discharged.
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Authority Meeting held on 26 July 2021 be
signed by the Chair as a correct record.

10

COVID-19 UPDATE
Members were provided with an update on SYFR’s response and recovery to the
COVID-19 pandemic.
On 19 July 2021, the Government had lifted the final COVID-19 restrictions,
although the Service had decided to maintain a number of the restrictions for the
foreseeable future in relation to infection, prevention and control measures. This
was in line with the National Fire Chiefs’ Council’s position.
The Service’s position was to continue to:


Wear face masks where social distancing could not be adhered to both inside
and outside of the workplace, and when in contact with members of the public.
Encourage staff to undertake lateral flow tests twice weekly, prior to coming
into the workplace.

Members noted the relatively high COVID-19 infection rates that continued to be
experienced across the region.
In terms of service delivery, the Service had continued to respond to all
emergencies throughout the pandemic, but some community and business
engagement work had been suspended during specific periods of the pandemic.
From 17 April 2021, the Service had resumed much of its community engagement
work in a risk assessed manner. The Service would continue to increase its
engagement within the community in relation to children and young people through
the Prince’s Trust and the Cadets Programme, conduct business fire safety audits,
and home and school visits etc.
The Service continued to maintain agile working arrangements for Support Staff.
Maximum building occupancy factors based upon risk assessments and social
distancing had been implemented to ensure staff safety in returning back into the
workplace. Each department maintained its own departmental rota.

Page 42

Fire and Rescue Authority
Monday 13 September 2021

The Service encouraged its staff to notify when they had received their COVID-19
vaccinations. A number of staff had volunteered to receive St John’s Ambulance
training, which had enabled assistance to be provided at some of the vaccination
sites across South Yorkshire. To date, the Service had vaccinated over 1,000
individuals.
The Service remained an active member of the Local Resilience Forum which dealt
with the response and recovery measures, and met on a weekly basis.
RESOLVED – That Members noted the update.
11

STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE AND ANNUAL REPORT - 2020/21
A report of the Chief Fire Officer and Chief Executive/Clerk to the Fire and Rescue
Authority was submitted which sought Authority approval for the South Yorkshire
Fire and Rescue Authority Statement of Assurance and Annual Report for 2020/21.
The Fire and Rescue National Framework for England was published in May 2018
and stated that fire and rescue authorities must publish a Statement of Assurance
on an annual basis and that, together with their services, remained free to operate
in a way that enabled the most efficient and effective delivery of their services. The
Statement of Assurance also contained the Annual Report.
Councillor Sansome raised a question in respect of the majority of the Authority’s
funding being provided directly by the Government, and the remainder raised via
the precept which formed part of the council tax bills issued by the district councils.
He asked if he might have a breakdown of that by District. S Booth undertook to
provide Members with a breakdown of the Council Tax contributions from each
local authority.
RESOLVED – That Members:-

12

i)

Endorsed and signed off the Statement of Assurance and Annual Report.

ii)

Noted that the assessment of the Service’s compliance against the
Fire and Rescue National Framework was covered by the report.

SYP AND SYFR COLLABORATION EVALUATION
A report of the Deputy Chief Fire Officer and Director of Service Development was
presented which provided feedback on the findings of the SYP and SYFR
collaboration evaluation that had been undertaken by Rose Regeneration. The
evaluation report primarily focused on the Joint Community Safety Department
(JCSD) and the Joint Vehicle Fleet Management Department (JVFM) in the SYFR
SYP Collaboration Programme.
From the findings of the 2019 HMICFRS inspection, the Service had recognised
that, whilst it had ongoing collaboration projects and initiatives with various
organisations, it had a limited amount of evidence on the evaluation of those
programmes. Therefore, Rose Regeneration had been commissioned to undertake
an independent evaluation. Since the evaluation report had been commissioned, a
Page 43

Fire and Rescue Authority
Monday 13 September 2021

decision had been made to cease the management arrangements across the
estate functions, to enable SYFR and SYP to separately manage their respective
estates.
The assessment on the Social Return of Investment had indicated a largely positive
return for the JVFM of £2.56 for every £1 spent, and the JCSD return of £3.23 for
every £1 spent.
Members noted that SYP had a new leadership team. Positive discussions had
been held at the recent Police and Fire Collaboration Board meetings. It was
anticipated to refresh the strategic aims and vision of the board, with a view
to considering future collaboration opportunities. The publication of the
Draft Government White Paper on Fire Reform was awaited.
In relation to the cessation of the management arrangements across the estate
functions, Councillor Ross queried whether there would be any implications for the
joint facility at Maltby or impacts on other potential joint facilities.
In response, DCFO Kirby commented that there had not been any impact in relation
to the joint facilities at Maltby. SYP had begun to expand its estate, but this did not
preclude the Service from entering into discussions regarding the potential sharing
of estates in the future.
S Booth referred to the evaluation process that had been undertaken on the
Service’s facilities management function which had been reported into the
Executive and the Senior Leadership Team, who had agreed to a new structure to
manage the Service’s estate. The matter had also been reported into the Service’s
workforce planning event that had been held in June 2021, and the restructure was
underway.
A progress report on the Service’s estate would be presented to the next Authority
meeting in October 2021. The interim arrangements had enabled the development
of the new Barnsley Fire Station, and the refurbishment works had continued at
Aston Park and Tankersley Fire Stations.
Councillor Ayris queried whether the Service undertook benchmarking against the
collaboration arrangements in other police forces and fire and rescue services, in
particular those which incorporated social return on investment.
Members noted that the Service undertook benchmarking in relation to the outcome
of the HMICFRS reports into fire and rescue services which tended to focus on
collaboration, in order to review the opportunities that had been explored and to
gain learning from that evaluation. The Service had a dedicated team which
focused on the upcoming HMICFRS inspection, which including reviewing the
programme of inspections that had been undertaken at other fire and rescue
services.
Councillor Hogarth made reference to the report which suggested that staff
undertaking broadly similar work at SYFR and SYP experienced different pay and
conditions. He requested that Members be provided with the details of the different
grades of pay.
Page 44

Fire and Rescue Authority
Monday 13 September 2021

DCFO Kirby commented that he would request the grading structure from SYP,
with a view to providing Members with the different grading structures for SYFR and
SYP. The information would be provided under the context that the roles within
both organisations would not be the same.
RESOLVED – That Members noted and provided feedback on the findings of the
collaboration evaluation report.
13

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21
A report of the Clerk to the Fire and Rescue Authority was submitted to present the
Audit and Governance Committee Annual Report 2020/21 for the Authority’s
consideration and approval.
Members noted that, in support of good governance, the Audit and Governance
Committee produced an Annual Report for the Authority which outlined the role of
the Committee, the responsibilities undertaken by its Members and the programme
of work.
RESOLVED – That Members:-

14

i)

Considered the Annual Report of its Audit and Governance Committee.

ii)

Agreed to publish it on the Authority’s website.

KEY ISSUES ARISING FROM THE PERFORMANCE AND SCRUTINY BOARD
MEETING HELD ON 15 JULY 2021
Members were provided with a key issues paper arising from the
Performance and Scrutiny Board meeting held on 15 July 2021.
In response to a question received from Councillor Ayris in relation to modified
duties for retained duty firefighters, DCFO Kirby commented that modified duties
would be offered to staff who were unable to fulfil their current role. This would
include undertaking community engagement work i.e. home safety checks,
although this had been significantly reduced during the COVID-19 pandemic. The
Service would look further into undertaking modified duties from home. A medical
report would be required from a GP or the Service’s Occupational Health to indicate
that an individual could undertake some modified duties whilst they were unable to
carry out their normal duties.
Councillor Ross commented that, in previous years, Members had expressed
concern at the ageing workforce within the Service. He was pleased to observe
that the Service’s profile was now changing and recruitment had recommenced.
The matter had been discussed at length at the recent Performance and Scrutiny
Board meeting.
RESOLVED – That Members noted the key issues arising from the
Performance and Scrutiny Board Meeting held on 15 July 2021.

Page 45

Fire and Rescue Authority
Monday 13 September 2021

15

DRAFT MINUTES OF THE YORKSHIRE AND HUMBER EMPLOYERS'
ASSOCIATION AGM HELD ON 8 JULY 2021
A request was made for a Member to replace Councillor Damms as the Authority’s
representative on the Yorkshire and Humber Employers’ Association.
Councillor Sansome would give consideration to taking up that role.
RESOLVED – That Members noted the draft minutes of the Yorkshire and Humber
Employers’ Association AGM held on 8 July 2021.

16

DRAFT MINUTES OF THE LOCAL PENSION BOARD HELD ON 8 JULY 2021
RESOLVED – That Members noted the draft minutes of the Local Pension Board
held on 8 July 2021.

17

DRAFT MINUTES OF THE AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE HELD ON
26 JULY 2021
RESOLVED – That Members noted the draft minutes of the Audit and Governance
Committee held on 26 July 2021.
Actions Table
No.
1

Action
To present
information to
Members over the
next 12 months to
enable the
Performance
Management
Framework to be
shaped, prior to
Authority approval.

Timescale
CAG

Officer(s)
ACO Carlin

Status/ Update
Update 01-03-21
Cllrs Buckley and Cave
continue to be consulted
as part of the Task and
Finish Group.
Update 28-04-21
Over the last twelve
months information and
progress had been
provided to Members
through CAG, the
Performance and Scrutiny
Board and to the full
Fire Authority meetings for
example in February and
April 2021.
Over the next twelve
months regular task and
finish meetings were
planned which would
include Members. The last
twelve months had seen
Cllrs Buckley and Cave
attend and subject to the
Page 46

Fire and Rescue Authority
Monday 13 September 2021
No.

Action

Timescale

Officer(s)

Status/ Update
local elections, they had
both indicated a
willingness to assist in the
future. The Service guided
by the Authority,
suggested further deep
dives of the performance
management framework
could take place at future
Performance and Scrutiny
Board meetings.
Update 24-06-21
Members will be aware of
the Power-Bi development
process that was making
performance data easily
accessible for both
managers and Members.
ACO Carlin wished to
thank Cllrs Buckley and
Cave for their work and
dedication in progressing
this work. New Members
were encouraged to make
themselves familiar with
the system by going
through AM Nicholson and
L Noble to arrange any
development sessions.
The Service would also
welcome any Members
who were interested in
taking a larger role in the
development of the
system to ensure that it
meets Members’ needs.
New Members will
be contacted by
AM Strelczenie, the Head
of Emergency Response,
who will give them a brief
introduction to the
operational side of the
Service, introduce them to
their local District Manager
– who will then take
Members through their
local District Plan.

Page 47

Fire and Rescue Authority
Monday 13 September 2021
No.

Action

Timescale

Officer(s)

Status/ Update
Update 24-6-21
Service to check whether
replacement Lead
Members are still required
to support the
performance framework.
Update 30-7-21
At the P&S Board on
15th July 2021 it was
confirmed that the Service
would still like a Lead
Member for performance,
and it was agreed this
would be Cllr Colin Ross
as Chair of the P&S
Board.
Update 6-8-21
All new Members have
received virtual Power-Bi
training w/c 6th July 2021
(and some existing
Members took the
opportunity of a ‘refresh’).
ACTION DISCHARGED

2

In relation to LPI 4.6
‘Firefighter cost per
person per year’, to
ascertain with the HMI
lead regarding the
metrics to ensure the
consistency of
definition. To provide
Members with an
update at a future
FRA.

Future FRA

GM Rowland

Update 23-06-21
HMICFRS took the data
used to calculate
firefighter cost per person
per year from the annual
financial data returns that
individual FRSs complete
and submit to CIPFA, and
ONS mid-2017 population
estimates.
ACTION DISCHARGED

3

Feedback on the out
of hours trial to be
provided to the
Stakeholder Planning
Board after a 3 month
period, with a final
report to be presented
to the Authority in
12 months’ time.

Stakeholder
Planning
Board on
21-07-21
FRA on
11-04-22

AM Dunker

Update 26-07-21
An update was provided to
the Stakeholder Planning
Board held on 21-07-21.
ACTION DISCHARGED

Page 48

Fire and Rescue Authority
Monday 13 September 2021
No.
4

Action
To provide Members
with a breakdown of
the Council Tax
contributions from
each local authority

Timescale
ASAP

Officer(s)
S Booth

Status/ Update
Update 16-09-21
Members were provided
with the information via
email.
ACTION DISCHARGED

5

To provide Members
with the grading
structures for SYFR
and SYP.

ASAP

DCFO Kirby

Update 29-09-21
SYFR has requested
details from SYP on
grading structures within
certain depts. This will be
anonymised but making
comparisons will be
difficult as the department
structures will be different,
with different
responsibilities, role maps
and grading processes.
SYFR has also requested
further details from
Rose Regeneration on the
wording in their report that
gave rise to this query at
the September FRA
meeting. This may also
provide some clarity on
the matter for FRA
Members.

CHAIR

Please follow the link below for further information on the updates of the actions
arising from the Fire and Rescue Authority meetings:https://meetings.southyorks.gov.uk/ecSDDisplayClassic.aspx?NAME=SD1250&ID=
1250&RPID=402996&sch=doc&cat=13039&path=13039&zTS=D

Page 49

This page is intentionally left blank

SOUTH YORKSHIRE PENSIONS AUTHORITY
9 SEPTEMBER 2021

PRESENT:

Councillor J Mounsey (Chair)
Councillors: S Clement-Jones, S Cox, D Fisher, M Havard, D Nevett,
C Rosling-Josephs, A Sangar, M Stowe, G Weatherall and N Wright
Trade Unions: N Doolan-Hamer (Unison) and G Warwick (GMB)
Investment Advisors: A Devitt and L Robb
Officers: G Graham (Director), G Kirk (Monitoring Officer),
M McCarthy (Deputy Clerk), G Richards (Senior Democratic Services
Officer), S Smith (Head of Investments) and G Taberner (Head of
Finance and Corporate Services)
A Stone and G Kendall (Border to Coast Pensions Partnership Ltd)
Apologies for absence were received from D Patterson and J Bailey

1

APOLOGIES
Apologies were noted as above.

2

ANNOUNCEMENTS
None.

3

URGENT ITEMS
None.

4

ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS.
RESOLVED – That Item 16 ‘Annual Review of the Border to Coast Pensions
Partnership’, Item 17 ‘Progress on the Agricultural Portfolio’ and Item 18 ‘Advisor’s
Appraisal’ be considered in the absence of the public and press.

5

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST.
None.

6

SECTION 41 FEEDBACK FROM DISTRICT COUNCILS
None.

7

MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL AUTHORITY MEETING HELD ON 10 JUNE 2021
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Annual meeting of the Authority held on 10 th June
2021 be agreed as a true record.
Page 51

Pensions Authority: Thursday 9 September 2021

8

MINUTES OF THE ORDINARY AUTHORITY MEETING HELD ON 10 JUNE 2021
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Ordinary meeting of the Authority held on 10 th
June 2021 be agreed as a true record.

9

CHANGES TO THE MEMBERSHIP OF THE AUTHORITY
A report was submitted to inform Members of recent changes to the Membership of the
Authority.
The Chair welcomed Cllr G Weatherall to the meeting.
It was noted that a new Vice-Chair would be appointed to replace Cllr Law once
Sheffield CC’s membership had been confirmed.
RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

10

Q1 CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORT
G Taberner presented the Corporate Performance report for Q1 2020/21.
Key points for the quarter were:






Good progress on a range of corporate objectives in key areas of training and
development and the office accommodation project.
Fund value at a record high of £10.2 billion and funding level over 110%.
Operational budget forecast showed sufficient resources available for key
projects in 2021/22.
Delays to delivery of some of the corporate plans including clearance of
casework backlogs regarding aggregations and procurement of a new HR and
Staff Payroll system.
Increase in sickness absence levels compared to the previous quarter, although
they remained fairly low overall.

Members noted a table within the report which provided updates in respect of
developments in delivering the Corporate Plan and supporting strategies.
With regard to Pensions Administration, it was noted that the improvement in priority
cases times was mostly attributable to improvements in reporting on death cases. 98%
of death cases and 76% of retirement cases were processed within the 5 day target
time.
In relation to non-priority case performance, high volumes of aggregation cases
continued to account for the majority of ‘late’ cases. A project team was being
established to focus on improving the effectiveness of processing in this area.
In answer to a question from the Chair regarding clearing of backlogs, the Director
confirmed that some progress had been made albeit slowly. The backlog was not
affecting processing of retirements or benefit payments.

Page 52

Pensions Authority: Thursday 9 September 2021
Members were reminded that the budget for 2021/22 was set and approved at
£5,445,600. The total budget requirement had not changed but it was now necessary
to request approval for a small number of budget virements to reflect the planned
expenditure on projects and the resourcing of that. These concerned the Oakwell
House Project, the Investment Strategy budget and the Pensions Administration budget.
Full details were set out in the report.
It was noted that there had been eight complaints during the period, six of which were
outside the Authority’s control.
Members noted the updated Risk Register which was attached as an appendix to the
report.
The August review of the Risk Register resulted in two changes, namely 02 – Failure to
meet statutory requirements for disclosure of information to scheme members and 05 –
Disruption to services due to failure to complete the works required to Oakwell House
on time and on budget. Full details were within the report.
RESOLVED – That Members:

11

i)

Note the report.

ii)

Approve the proposed budget virements to resource the delivery of key corporate
priorities as set out in paragraphs 4.18 to 4.20 of the report.

ADVISOR'S COMMENTARY
A Devitt provided a market commentary on recent events.
Highlights included:






Vaccine roll out remained a mixed picture. The “vaccines as a path to full
economic recovery” narrative seemed to have had a positive effect and had
fuelled resilience in equity markets, particularly in the US.
Interest rates remained at record lows and seemed set to remain there for some
time, this was leading investors to seek alternatives to bond yields that were
further eroded by inflation.
The regulatory interference in China had hit Chinese stocks in the quarter.
Supply chain disruptions remained which was shoring up prices and was still a
key point to watch as an indicator of policy action.
Geopolitical upsets, such as the Taliban regaining control in Afghanistan, did not
seem to be impacting markets currently.

It was thought that the months ahead were likely to be characterised by volatility,
uncertainty, complexity and ambiguity.
Inflation would be something to look out for and how companies were coping and what
was the base level of consumer demand. Some profit taking and less market support
in the equity market was expected which would cause the market to be more volatile
and COP26, the UN Climate Change Conference in November, would be a key forum
for setting environmental standards and expectations.
Page 53

Pensions Authority: Thursday 9 September 2021
L Robb commented that all markets were priced relative to low interest rates and low
inflation, if anything challenged that environment it would be a risk.
In response to a question from Cllr Wright, A Devitt commented that it was difficult to
attribute any disruption to the pandemic or Brexit. Brexit repercussions were not thought
to be a large threat to portfolios at the moment.
The Chair thanked A Devitt for the update.
12

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT TO 30 JUNE 2021
S Smith presented the Quarterly Investment Performance report to 30th June 2021.
The report contained the valuation breakdown of the Fund showing the values across
the different asset classes. This showed that at 30th June 2021 the Fund was valued at
over £10bn and the funding level was 113.3%. For the quarter to the end of June 2021,
the Fund returned 4% against the expected benchmark of 4.3%.
With regard to asset allocation, as equity markets continued to improve, profits were
taken - £3.8m was raised from legacy holdings and used to fund the drawdowns into
alternative funds. £100m was withdrawn from the Border to Coast overseas developed
fund to reduce the overweight position to equities.
The report gave details of recent property transactions and the Fund allocation was
shown in a chart against the strategic target. The changes in net investment for the
categories over the last year was also included and showed that the Fund was being
de-risked in line with the strategic benchmark.
Members were informed that over the quarter all Border to Coast’s equity funds had
underperformed their respective benchmarks. Looking at the longer term position, a
chart within the report showed the performance of each of the Border to Coast funds
held by SYPA since inception. It showed that four of the five funds had outperformed
and matched the target return.
RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

13

BORDER TO COAST PRESENTATION
Andrew Stone and George Kendall gave a presentation from Border to Coast Pensions
Partnership.
The presentation covered:






Border to Coast’s purpose and approach.
Progress at Border to Coast.
SYPA’s Investments.
Upcoming Fund Launches.
Approach to Responsible Investment.

Following the presentation members asked questions about a range of issues raised in
the presentation.
Page 54

Pensions Authority: Thursday 9 September 2021
The Chair thanked A Stone for a very interesting and informative presentation.
14

Q1 RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT UPDATE
Members considered the Responsible Investment Update for Q1 2021/22.
It was noted that highlight included:











The casting of 6,110 individual votes as 411 different company meetings.
A number of significant “say on climate” votes.
The Authority, along with one other Border to Coast Partner Fund, casting its
vote differently in relation to the Shell climate transition plan because of the lack
of connection between that plan and the underlying business plan.
An increase in the level of engagement activity in emerging markets.
A continued high level of engagement around social issues as well as some
increase in engagement around environmental issues driven by “say on climate”.
A new engagement theme around post pandemic labour practices.
Continued gradual improvement in ESG performance in all three of the equity
portfolios with a noticeable positive impact from the restructuring of the Emerging
Markets Fund.
Continued reductions in all carbon emissions metrics with a highly material
reduction in the Emerging Markets Fund, although it was clear that in isolation
and without further action, those portfolios would not currently hit the 2030 Net
Zero Goal.
The inclusion of the Authority as a leading practice case study by external
organisations in relation to both place-based impact investing and Net Zero.

The report contained detailed sections on engagement activity, voting activity, portfolio
ESG performance, progress to Net Zero, collaborative activity and policy development
and members asked a number of questions around the progress being made towards
key objectives such as Net Zero.
RESOLVED – That the report be noted.
15

DEVELOPMENT OF THE BORDER TO COAST PROPERTY POOLING
PROPOSITION
A report was submitted which provided members with an update on the development of
the Border to Coast property proposition and to gain approval for the required
contribution to further development costs.
Members were informed that Border to Coast was proposing to launch Global and UK
products which addressed the demand from partner funds.
Having considered feedback from partner funds around differences in risk appetite and
return expectations, the Company proposed to launch two “fund of fund” structures.
One would focus on Core and Core+ holdings, and the other with a higher risk/return
balance would target Value Add and Opportunistic holdings which would involve more
development risk.

Page 55

Pensions Authority: Thursday 9 September 2021
The Company would need to secure an advisor to work with them on selecting the
specific funds to hold within these products and this procurement would be part of the
next stage of development.
It was noted that the Company and the Authority’s Investment Advisory Panel were in
ongoing dialogue over the detailed business case for the pooling of existing investments
and those discussions would culminate in a recommendation later in the financial year.
Members were informed that the remaining development work would involve significant
spend on legal and tax advisors to draw up the necessary documents for regulatory
approval and create the required legal structures together with specialist support for the
various procurement processes as well as the costs of a project team within the
Company. The estimated contribution per partner fund was up to £0.5m which included
a significant contingency.
RESOLVED – That members:

16

i)

Note the progress being made in developing Border to Coast’s property proposition
and the proposed next steps for the Authority.

ii)

Approve a contribution of £0.5m to the further development costs of the
proposition.

DECISIONS TAKEN BETWEEN MEETINGS OF THE AUTHORITY
A report was submitted which gave details of decisions taken as a matter of urgency
between meetings.
It was noted that one decision had been required since the previous Authority meeting.
This related to the casting of the Authority’s shareholder vote on four resolutions at the
annual general meeting of Border to Coast. The resolutions covered:
1.
2.
3.
4.

The approval of the Annual Report and Accounts.
The reappointment of KPMG as auditors.
The annual review of the conflicts of interest policy for directors.
The register of director’s interests.

Having considered the advice of the Director and the views of the s41 members, the
Chair had agreed that the Authority’s vote should be cast in favour of all four resolutions.
RESOLVED – That members note the decisions taken between Authority meetings
using the appropriate urgency procedures.
Exclusion of the Public and Press
RESOLVED – That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part
1 of Schedule 12A of the Act and the public interest not to disclose information
outweighs the public interest in disclosing it.
17

ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE BORDER TO COAST PENSIONS PARTNERSHIP
Page 56

Pensions Authority: Thursday 9 September 2021

A report was submitted which allowed members to review the performance of the Border
to Coast Pensions Partnership and the Authority’s arrangement for overseeing and
engaging with the work of the Partnership.
RESOLVED – That members:

18

i)

Note the views of the Independent Advisory Panel set out in Appendix A.

ii)

Approve the recommended actions set out in Appendix A.

PROGRESS ON THE AGRICULTURAL PORTFOLIO
A report was considered which provided an update on activity associated with the
Agricultural Property portfolio.
RESOLVED – That members:

19

i)

Note the activity being undertaken in relation to the portfolio following the review
considered by the Authority last year.

ii)

Endorse the approach outlined within the report to “Project Chip” and delegate
execution to officers in consultation with the Independent Investment Advisors.

ADVISOR'S APPRAISAL
A report was submitted which provided an opportunity to appraise the performance of
the arrangements in place for independent advice in relation to investment matters.
RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

CHAIR

Page 57

This page is intentionally left blank

SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
20 SEPTEMBER 2021

PRESENT:

Councillor R Haleem (Rotherham MBC) (Chair)
Councillor A Cherryholme (Barnsley MBC) (Vice-Chair)
Councillors: T Baum-Dixon (Rotherham MBC), R Davison (Sheffield City
Council), P Garbutt (Sheffield City Council), S Knowles (Doncaster MBC),
B Lodge (Sheffield City Council), R Milsom (Sheffield City Council) and
C Ransome (Doncaster MBC)
Independent Co-opted Members: W Carratt and Professor A James
Dr A Billings (South Yorkshire Police and Crime Commissioner)
M Buttery, S Abbott, S Parkin, K Wright, M Carroll and F Topliss
(Office of the South Yorkshire Police and Crime Commissioner)
M McCarthy, J Field, L Noble and A Shirt
(Barnsley MBC)
Apologies for absence were received from
Councillor C Pickering (Barnsley MBC)

1

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and introduced herself to Councillors
Milsom, Lodge and Independent Member Mr Carratt.

2

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
An apology for absence was noted as above.

3

ANNOUNCEMENTS
None.

4

URGENT ITEMS
None.

5

ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS
None.

Page 59

SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
20/09/21

6

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST BY INDIVIDUAL MEMBERS IN RELATION TO
ANY ITEM OF BUSINESS ON THE AGENDA
None.

7

PUBLIC QUESTIONS:-

8A

TO THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER
There were no public questions to the Police and Crime Commissioner.

8B

TO THE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
There were no public questions to the Police and Crime Panel.

9

MINUTES OF THE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL MEETING HELD ON 19TH JULY
2021
L Noble provided Members with an update on the Action Log.
The Panel noted that the following actions:
- Action 11 (03-02-21) – Services for Victims of Crime: Progress Update,
- Action 8 (19-04-21) – Information from the Force on Wildlife Crimes, and
- Action 12 (19-04-21) – IEP’s work in relation to priorities surrounding
disproportionality and inclusion - were all currently ‘live’ actions.
The Panel requested that the above actions be retained on the Panel’s Action Log
for further updates.
In response to concerns raised by Councillor Baum-Dixon, the Commissioner said
that he would undertake further discussions with K Wright to clarify what data is
kept by the Force with regards to wildlife and rural crimes.
Councillor Ransome informed the Commissioner that she was currently
experiencing considerable difficulty understanding where the Rural Crime Unit sits
in the Force’s structure. Furthermore, Councillor Ransome queried how she could
contact the Rural Crime Unit to report rural and wildlife crimes.
In response, the Commissioner said that, in the first instance, Members’ should
contact their local Neighbourhood Policing Team to make contact with the Rural
Crime Unit. It was noted that the Rural Crime Unit was located at Ring Farm,
Cudworth, Barnsley.
The Commissioner urged all Panel Members’ to make contact with their local
Neighbourhood Policing Team Inspector and Sergeants to help build a positive
working relationship with them.
The Panel agreed that Action 11 (07-06-21) – Monitoring Delivery of the Police and
Crime Plan – Quarterly Report (January to March 2021) and Action 11 (19-07-21 iv)
– Analysis around the recorded reduction in the number of sexual offences be
Page 60

SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
20/09/21

marked as ‘discharged’ on the Panel’s Action Log and referred to the Performance
Member Sub-Group and added to their Action Log.
Professor James referred to the update provided in relation to Action 11 (19-07-21
v ) – Independent Ethics Panel (IEP) agendas and minutes not published to the
OPCC website. He made the Commissioner aware that there remained no IEP
minutes for two meetings held in 2021 and no IEP agendas published on the OPCC
website since 2019.
M Buttery replied that the minutes of the meetings had been published to the
OPCC’s website, however following discussion with the Chair of the IEP, it was felt
that the publication of full IEP minutes would restrict the Panel’s ability to have a full
and frank discussion.
The IEP had agreed that an exception report would be submitted to the Public
Accountability Board (PAB) and published with the PAB agenda papers on the
OPCC website detailing the work of the IEP.
Professor James raised concerns and felt that full IEP agendas and minutes should
be published to the OPCC website.
The Commissioner acknowledged Professor James’ concerns. He said that a
correct balance needed to be achieved between openness and transparency, and
the discussions at the IEP meetings. He agreed to undertake further discussions
with the Chair of the IEP and Chief Constable to try and find an acceptable way
forward.
The Panel agreed that the Action be retained on the Action Log for further updates.
The Panel noted that Action 13 (19-07-21) – Independent Ethics Panel’s work on
Stop and Search was still a ‘live’ action and agreed that the action be retained on
the Panel’s Action Log for further updates.
RESOLVED –
i)

That the minutes of the Police and Crime Panel meeting held on 19 th July
2021 be agreed and signed by the Chair as a correct record.

ii)

Agreed that Action 11 (03-02-21) – Services for Victims of Crime: Progress
Update, Action 8 (19-04-21) – Information from the Force on Wildlife Crimes
and Action 12 (19-04-21) – IEP’s work in relation to priorities surrounding
disproportionality and inclusion were all currently ‘live’ actions and be retained
on the Panel’s Action Log for further updates.

iii)

Agreed that Action 11 (07-06-21) – Monitoring Delivery of the Police and
Crime Plan – Quarterly Report (January to March 2021) and
Action 11 (19-07-21 iv) – Analysis around recorded reduction in the number of
sexual offences be marked as ‘discharged’ on the Panel’s Action Log and
referred to the Performance Member Sub-Group and added to their Action
Log.

Page 61

SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
20/09/21

10

iv)

Noted that the Commissioner had agreed to undertake further discussions
with K Wright to clarify what data is kept by the Force with regards to rural
crimes and wildlife crimes.

v)

Noted that the Commissioner had agreed to undertaken further discussions
with the Chair of the Independent Ethics Panel (IEP) and Chief Constable to
try and find an acceptable way forward in relation to the publication of IEP
agendas and minutes to the OPCC website.

vi)

Agreed that Action 13 (19-07-21) – Independent Ethics Panel’s work on Stop
and Search was still a ‘live’ action and be retained on the Panel’s Action Log
for further updates.

QUARTER 1 - CONSOLIDATED BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2021/22
A report of the Chief Finance Officer was presented setting out the consolidated
financial position on the current budget and expenditure managed by the Chief
Constable of South Yorkshire Police force and budgets managed by the Office of
the Police and Crime Commissioner for the period 1 April 2021 to 30 June 2021.
Members noted that the PCC had approved a revenue budget of £296.0m
(including legacy) for 2021/22. In addition, £1.466m of adjustments had been
made since the budget had been approved, taking the revenue budget to £297m.
Based on current assumptions, the forecast outturn position for the revenue budget
was an underspend of £2.642m as at 30 June 2021.
As at 30 June 2021, the projected year end outturn position was a £2.761m
underspend on the Chief Constable’s budget, net of external funding. The PCC
and OPCC budget forecast year end position was an underspend of £149k. The
main reasons for the underspend and variances form the budget were presented
within the report.
Members noted that the OPCC’s Commissioning Team were working on the
submission of various bids to secure additional funding for the county. Two grants
had already been received in 2021/22 relating to the Safer Streets bids, covering
Dearne (£418k) and Sharrow (£432k).
Members noted that the PCC had approved a capital programme of £17.8m in
February 2021, it was likely that this would be revised to £19.63m to include
slippages from 2020/21. Expenditure to date amounted to £2.08m, full year
projections were £18.95m with a £0.68m underspend relating to IT projects.
As at 30 June 2021, COVID-19 expenditure of £0.63m had been incurred, with
opportunity costs and lost income standing at £0.12m.
As at 31 March 2021, the overall level of revenue reserves available was £64.96m.
This included general reserves of £42.2m, earmarked, and insurance reserves of
£10.6m and £12.1m respectively. The expected movement in year, based on
projections at the end of June 2021, were detailed in a table at paragraph 6 of the
report.
Page 62

SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
20/09/21

It was highlighted that £1.25m related to a pension underspend and would be
transferred from the general fund reserve to the unusable pension reserve. This
treatment was in line with the External Audit’s opinion.
Hillsborough, the Stovewood enquiry, and CSE civil claims were currently showing
a combined overspend of £0.27m. The overspends would be transferred from the
legacy reserve at the end of the financial year.
Paragraph 7 of the report set out a number of risks and uncertainties in the
reported financial position in addition to COVID-19 issues raised within the report.
Assurances were provided that the risks are consistently monitored by the OPCC
and Force Finance Teams and discussed at the appropriate senior leadership
groups.
In response to a question from Councillor Davison, S Abbott confirmed that the
Force did receive additional income from various external sources.
Councillor Davison asked how the PCC and Force invested funds and furthermore,
did this save on insurance fees.
S Abbott replied that the PCC and Force did have an insurance reserve, which was
currently just over £11m, based on actual reserves for claims which were currently
pending. An Actuarial Valuation was scheduled to be undertaken shortly.
In relation to investments, S Abbott confirmed that Treasury Management services
were provided via a contract with Doncaster MBC to undertake day to day
investment and borrowing on the PCC’s / Force’s behalf. It was noted that the PCC
/ Force did have a small amount of temporary borrowing. Investments were
predominantly kept in banks and building societies in line with the approved
Treasury Management Strategy approved by the Commissioner on an annual
basis.
Councillor Davison asked if budgets were fixed and if they could be moved from
one to another.
S Abbott replied that there was some virement allowed on a local basis, which the
Force’s Director of Finance could approve up to a set amount, above this amount it
would need to be approved by the Commissioner.
Councillor Baum-Dixon referred to the projected £2.7m underspend. He noted that
when accounting entries had been taken account of in relation to the COVID-19
grant and the prepayment of the staff pension lump sum, it would be a much
improved break-even position. He asked that when the pension contributions had
been made, would this put the budget in an improved position in future years.
S Abbott replied that a pension re-valuation was undertaken every three years. As
part of the re-valuation last year, it was identified that there was an historical deficit
on past payment costs. By paying the lump sum upfront, money had been saved
by not paying three years worth of interest charges.
Page 63

SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
20/09/21

In response to a question from Councillor Baum-Dixon in relation to the levels set
for prudent reserves, the Commissioner explained that reserves should not be
below five percent of the revenue budget.
Councillor Baum-Dixon noted that the Force had made considerable savings on
gas, electric, fuel, mileage, public transport and stationery as a result of employees
working from home during the COVID-19 pandemic. He asked if the Commissioner
would be reviewing practices and efficiencies made during this period.
The Commissioner replied that the Force were required to have robust efficiency
savings, which he would be reviewing ahead of the budget setting process. In
relation to the COVID-19 pandemic, there were various impacts arising which both
the Commissioner and Chief Constable were still assessing with regards to future
office space requirements.
M Buttery added that the Force were currently undertaking a Smarter Working
project to take account of learning as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.
RESOLVED – That Members of the Police and Crime Panel noted the contents of
the report and commented on any matters arising.
11

MONITORING DELIVERY OF THE POLICE AND CRIME PLAN - QUARTERLY
REPORT (APRIL TO JUNE 2021)
A report of the Commissioner was presented which set out the Quarterly Report for
the period April to June 2021 (Quarter 1 2021/22), produced from the Police and
Crime Commissioner’s (PCC’s) Police and Partners Performance Framework.
The report aimed to provide information about how the police and partners, as well
as the Office of the PCC (OPCC) are working to achieve the outcomes and
priorities set out in the Police and Crime Plan for South Yorkshire.
Members were informed that the reporting period covered the time of the COVID-19
pandemic and the associated restrictions imposed by the Government.
The report was also the first report covering the transitional Police and Crime Plan
from April 2021 to March 2022. Members noted that the Commissioner’s priorities
had remained the same for 2021/22.
In addition, the performance framework had been updated to take account of The
National Policing Priorities for Policing as specified by Government in the National
Crime and Policing Measures. The six key National Policing Priorities were
detailed in the report.
An additional statement on the contribution of the Force achieving improvements
against the national priorities had been published on the OPCC website with a copy
circulated to Panel Members via email.

Page 64

SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
20/09/21

K Wright provided Members with a summary of the key headlines contained in the
Quarterly Police and Crime Plan Performance Report attached at Appendix A to the
report.
Professor James asked how many referrals the Inspire to Change programme
could accommodate, what level of future demand there would be, and if there were
robust processes in place to monitor outcomes. Professor James also asked if
repeat offenders would be prioritised.
M Carroll replied that no upper limit had been set in the contract in relation to the
number of referrals which the programme could accommodate. The Inspire to
Change Programme provider had agreed that they could be flexible with the
amount of referrals, and had also provided assurances that they could run
programmes concurrently.
As part of the monthly contract meetings held in partnership with co-commissioners
and the local authorities, they would be keeping a note of the number of referrals.
If there was a requirement for expansion, then further discussions would take place.
Under the previous contract there had been over 2,600 referrals. Of this, 400
individuals had completed the programme and over 900 individuals had taken part
in the programme, but did not fully complete the programme.
In relation to performance measures, it was confirmed that these were currently in
the process of being finalised with the programme provider.
As part of the performance matrix, victim feedback would be sought from partners
and family members of those individuals taking part in the programme. Work would
also take place with the Force to analyse reoffending.
Professor James asked if work would be taking place to improve the number of
individuals dropping out of the programme.
In response, M Carroll confirmed that this area was one which the contractor had
been asked to focus on.
Professor James asked if the Commissioner was satisfied that the Force were
using the full range of powers available to them. For example, issuing Domestic
Violence Protection Orders in relation to dealing with domestic abuse.
The Commissioner provided assurances that he was satisfied with the Force’s
performance in this area. In addition, the Force did rank very highly in terms of
dealing with domestic abuse cases.
K Wright added that the Force had established a Domestic Violence Protection
Orders Team. He agreed to undertake analysis to identify the number of Domestic
Violence Protection Orders which had been issued.
Professor James asked if there was any local district data available to set out the
hotspot areas in South Yorkshire where child sexual abuse was taking place to
enable the Force to undertake action in these areas.
Page 65

SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
20/09/21

K Wright agreed to analyse the data and forward information to the Performance
Sub-Group.
W Carratt referred to the Safeguarding Children section in the report. He queried
why there was an absence of other safeguarding responsibilities. For example,
Operation Encompass and Section 47 of the Children Act 1989.
The Commissioner replied that there was a limit to the amount of information which
could be provided within the report, but he would look to respond to this request in
a future report.
K Wright added that information on Operation Encompass had been included in
PAB reports.
W Carratt referred to Regional Collaboration. He asked why there had been a
delay in obtaining procurement data.
K Wright replied that he had now received this information and agreed to circulate
to Members after today’s meeting.
W Carratt referred to the National Priorities for Policing. He asked if performance
indicators or data was available on the number of cases that are closed early, and
those cases which are followed through to trial with regards to Violence against
Women and Girls.
The Commissioner replied that Violence against Women and Girls was a national
issue and a Government priority. The Commissioner said that he was arranging a
round table discussion in South Yorkshire with all partners to understand the
pattern in South Yorkshire and if there are any gaps in the services which are
offered.
M Buttery added that information could be provided to Panel Members setting out
details of the data around Violence against Women and Girls which is provided to
the Commissioner and also data which is provided to him in his role as Chair of the
Local Criminal Justice Board, together with an explanation of their differences.
Professor James commented that, in convening the round table discussion, he
asked if the Commissioner could take in to account that, sixty percent of female
offenders had been victims of domestic abuse and that offenders were vulnerable
people too.
The Commissioner acknowledged Professor James’ comment. He added that he
also needed to consult with victims.
Councillor Garbutt asked if representatives from the Sheffield South Asian
Community Group had been invited to the round table discussion.
The Commissioner asked if Councillor Garbutt could send him further information
about the role of the Group and a description of the work they carry out. This would
enable him to consider inviting them to the round table discussion.
Page 66

SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
20/09/21

Councillor Milsom referred to the Tackling Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour section
of the report. She asked what the Commissioner’s perception was in relation to the
effectiveness of the Neighbourhood Policing Teams, particularly in following up
incidents of crime and anti-social behaviour, and liaising with local authority
Community Safety teams, and in some cases housing officers or other partners.
In addition, she asked if the Commissioner perceived that local authority teams are
effective in supporting and liaising with Neighbourhood Policing Teams and are
there any weaknesses in the system that the Commissioner perceives; if so how
should they be addressed to fulfil the Police and Crime Plan objectives.
In addition, Councillor Milsom asked the Commissioner to what extent he was
confident that Neighbourhood Policing Teams might be able to ringfence their area
of operation in the future, to ensure 7-days-a-week availability of their availability to
their communities and was this an objective being pursued, in line the Police and
Crime Plan.
The Commissioner provided a detailed response. In summary, he said that, in
response to trust and confidence issues being raised by the public, local
Neighbourhood Policing Teams had been restored in 2016. There had also been a
commitment to increase officer numbers by 220 by 2024 funded from the Council
Tax Precept. In addition, there was a national commitment to increase officer
numbers by 20,000 by 2023/2024 (South Yorkshire’s share would be 487).
The Commissioner stated that Sheffield City Council had developed a new
neighbourhood structure with community groups, which was difficult to fit with the
local Neighbourhood Policing Team structure. However, the Force would do its
best to accommodate the changes.
The Commissioner said that in terms of ringfencing, the Chief Constable had
committed to keep officers in neighbourhoods wherever possible.
M Buttery added that the Chief Constable was currently in the process of reviewing
the Force’s neighbourhoods offer with regards to the number of officers in response
to make sure that this still reflects local authority changes.
Assurances were provided that the Chief Constable still wished to evolve the local
Neighbourhood Policing offer in line with local authority developments and their
place-based work.
Professor James queried how the Commissioner expected the Independent Ethics
Panel (IEP) to assure him that the questions raised by the Panel in their recent
report on Digital Policing had been addressed and embedded across the Force.
The Commissioner replied that he was in regular contact with the Chair of the IEP
who reports to him by exception. The IEP Chair provides him with assurances. In
addition, members of staff from the OPCC attend meetings of the IEP and bring any
pertinent matters to his attention.

Page 67

SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
20/09/21

M Buttery added that the IEP have a thematic lead for Digital Policing. The Lead
Member provides assurances to the Commissioner and Chair of the Panel about
the thematic area. The next IEP meeting was scheduled for 22 September 2021
where an update on the Digital Policing report would be presented.
Professor James asked how the IEP would assure itself and the Commissioner that
issues arising from the Digital Policing report are being addressed by the Force.
The Commissioner replied that he would need to await an exception report from the
Chair of the IEP following its meeting on 22 September. The Commissioner added
that there was no reason to suggest that the Force were not taking issues seriously
in relation to Digital Policing.
In response to a question from Councillor Garbutt, K Wright reported that there was
increased awareness of cybercrime due to recent publicity and members of the
public having an awareness of cybercrime and the confidence to report crimes to
the police.
In response to a question from Councillor Garbutt, the Commissioner confirmed
that all officers had received training to recognise mental ill health conditions and to
respond quickly by contacting the Ambulance Service.
Councillor Garbutt said that climate change was now an enormous factor affecting
children and young people’s mental health. He asked how far these worries could
be addressed by the Commissioner and if the Force were involved in these
discussions.
The Commissioner replied that it was a very difficult balance and judgement to
make around educating and informing young people, and organisations need to be
mindful that, in doing so, it could increase their anxiety levels.
Councillor Garbutt noted that racial hate crime had increased. He asked if the data
could be divided by ethnicity to show which ethnic group were victims of hate crime.
Councillor Garbutt reported that he had become aware of a Chinese community in
Sheffield who were not reporting hate crime directly to the Police and queried why
this may be.
The Commissioner replied that he was aware of this issue and had met with the
Chinese community and the University of Sheffield to address this. The
Commissioner had been assured that Chinese students could report issues directly
to the University, if they did not wish to go directly to the Police.
Councillor Garbutt noted that there was a big decrease in overall satisfaction of
hate crime victims. He asked if the Commissioner was looking to address this and
reinvigorate the satisfaction in the Force’s action.
In response the Commissioner said that, generally, victim satisfaction was
reasonably high in South Yorkshire. The Force continued to work with partners,
community groups and the OPCC to seek feedback from victims in order to learn
and improve.
Page 68

SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
20/09/21

Councillor Garbutt noted that it had been stated in the previous quarterly report,
and also in the report presented at today’s meeting, that work was ongoing to fully
understand why there is disproportionality in the use of stop and search within the
Black, Asian and Minority ethnic communities. He asked when work would be
concluded.
The Commissioner replied that he had previously informed the Panel that he was
unhappy with the methodology used to measure stop and searches broken down
by ethnicity. The ethnic breakdown of those stopped and searched was based on
the rate per 1000 population based on the 2011 population Census data. Changes
needed to be made around how the data is presented.
Councillor Baum-Dixon asked how the Force was looking to engage with other
networks to engage businesses in the evening economy to help them identify CSE
victims.
The Commissioner replied that, along with the Force, he had arranged meetings
with the Federation of Small Businesses specifically around CSE and the signs
businesses needed to observe and identify potential CSE and child criminal
exploitation victims. The Commissioner was assured around the work being
undertaken by the Force in this area, but acknowledged that there was further work
to be undertaken.
Councillor Baum-Dixon asked if the Commissioner could make a commitment to
meet with local Councillors and MPs in their wards.
The Commissioner replied that he did regularly undertake ward visits to understand
the issues which were of most concern to them.
In response to a question from Councillor Garbutt, the Commissioner explained that
roads policing featured in his transitional Police and Crime Plan and would also
feature in his new Police and Crime Plan.
The Commissioner added that he had recently joined road policing officers and
Dame Sarah Storey for a close pass operation targeting drivers who overtake
cyclists too closely. Publicity on the exercise would be issued later this week.
Councillor Ransome noted that the Force had the second highest rate of total
recorded crime compared to the most similar group of police forces. She asked if
this was historic.
K Wright confirmed that this was historic and could be due to a number of local
demographic factors.
RESOLVED – That Members of the Police and Crime Panel:i)

Noted the contents of the report and commented on any matters arising.

ii)

Noted that K Wright had agreed to undertake analysis to identify the number
of Domestic Violence Protection Orders which had been issued by the Force.
Page 69

SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
20/09/21

12

iii)

Noted that the Commissioner had agreed to look to respond to Mr Carratt’s
request to include details of other safeguarding responsibilities in a future
report.

iv)

Noted that procurement data information would be circulated to Members after
today’s meeting by K Wright.

v)

Noted that M Buttery had agreed to provide information to Members setting
out details of the data around Violence against Women and Girls which is
provided to the Commissioner and also data which is provided to him in his
role as Chair of the Local Criminal Justice Board, together with an explanation
of their differences.

vi)

Noted that K Wright had agreed to analyse CSE data on a local district level
and forward information to the Performance Sub-Group.

POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER'S UPDATE (INCLUDING DECISIONS
MADE SINCE THE LAST MEETING)
A report of the Commissioner was introduced to provide Members with an update
on key PCC and OPCC activities since the Panel’s last meeting held on 19th July
2021, under the headings within the OPCC’s Delivery Plan.
The report also provided Members with information on the decisions taken by the
PCC since the Panel’s last meeting.
The key activities reported for the period were detailed in the Executive Summary
of the report and noted by Members.
M Buttery paid tribute to the hard work of the OPCC Team during the course of the
COVID-19 pandemic to produce the transitional Police and Crime Plan and Annual
Report for 2020/21, together with pursuing external funding bids in exceptionally
short timescales.
The Panel congratulated the OPCC Team for their hard work and achievements
made in pursuing external funding bids.
In response to a request from Professor James, M Buttery agreed to provide Panel
Members with the terms of reference and work programmes for the Joint
Independent Audit Committee (JIAC) and Independent Ethics Panel.
M Buttery reminded Panel Members that the OPCC’s Partnership and
Commissioning Manager had offered to provide new Panel Members with an
overview of partnerships and commissioning services. If Panel Members wished to
take up this offer, then they should contact L Noble.
RESOLVED – That Members of the Police and Crime Panel:i)

Noted the contents of the report and commented on any matters arising.

Page 70

SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
20/09/21

13

ii)

Asked questions on the matters contained within the report, given it explains
how the PCC has over this period delivered his Police and Crime Plan, and
discharged the wide range of his legal responsibilities.

iii)

Noted that the terms of reference and work programmes for the Joint
Independent Audit Committee (JIAC) and Independent Ethics Panel would be
provided to Panel Members after today’s meeting.

ADDITIONAL INDEPENDENT MEMBER - CONSIDERATION TO COMMENCE
THE PROCESS WITH LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND THE HOME OFFICE
A report of the Panel’s Legal Adviser was presented which informed Members that,
in May 2021 the Panel had experienced a considerable turnover of Members,
including a new Chair and Vice-Chair.
With that in mind a suggestion had been made by one of the Panel’s Independent
Members that an additional Independent Member, be recruited and appointed to
serve for a maximum of eight years and a minimum of four, unless they wished to
resign from their role, to provide resilience through continuity of knowledge and
skills, to mitigate the turnover of Members year on year.
Details of the Statutory process to be undertaken to increase the Panel’s
membership was detailed within the report.
Councillor Baum-Dixon raised concerns around the appointment of a third
Independent Member to the Panel. He felt that the Panel may move to a more
academic form of scrutiny, rather than elected Members representing the views of
the public and the communities who elected them.
Following discussion and clarification of key matters arising from the report, a
recorded vote was undertaken and recorded as follows:For accepting the recommendations as outlined in the report (10) Councillors
Haleem, Cherryholme, Davison, Garbutt, Knowles, Lodge, Milsom, Ransome,
Professor James and Mr Carratt.
Against accepting the recommendations (1) Councillor Baum-Dixon and abstained
(0).
The recommendations were agreed by the Panel.
RESOLVED – That Members of the Police and Crime Panel:i)

Agreed to commence the process for approval to increase the number of Coopted Members to three by:
Seeking the approval of the four South Yorkshire authorities to amend the
Panel Arrangements to allow three co-opted Members (the precise wording to
be approved in consultation with the Chair); and

Page 71

SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
20/09/21

Seeking approval from the Secretary of State for the increase in number of
Co-opted Members.
ii)

14

Noted that, if approval is granted from the Secretary of State and the four
South Yorkshire authorities, a recruitment exercise would need to be
undertaken for another Independent co-opted Member using the same
(agreed) process as in previous recruitment exercises.

MEMBER ALLOWANCES / SPECIAL RESPONSIBILITY ALLOWANCE (SRA) CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR OF POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
A report of the Panel’s Service Director was submitted to inform Members that, in
2017-18 the Police and Crime Panel had approved a proposal by the, then Chair, to
engage an Independent consultant to review the Police and Crime Panel
allowances, and take a view on the payment of a Special Responsibility Allowance
(SRA) for the Chair and Vice-Chair.
Dr Declan Hall, an expert in the field of Member Allowances, undertook the review
and a report was presented to the Panel on 3 December 2018.
Details of the process followed was contained in the ‘Background’ section of the
report and noted by Members.
The report presented highlighted the requirement for primary local authorities and
Joint Authorities to review Member Allowances every three years. This was not a
requirement for the Police and Crime Panel as a Joint Committee.
However, for good governance, the Panel’s own arrangements state that an
independent review should be undertaken every three years. It was suggested that
the range, and volume, of work of the Panel has not significantly changed since
2018 and the Grant which pays the allowances and the SRA has not increased
since 2012. For those reasons it was recommended that any review be postponed
until the position on Fire Reform is clear.
RESOLVED – That Members of the Police and Crime Panel:-

15

i)

Noted the current Member Allowances as detailed at paragraph 6 of the
report.

ii)

Agreed that any review of the Special Responsibility Allowances paid to the
Chair and Vice-Chair, and a wider review of basic allowances, be delayed
until the consultation on Fire Reform has taken place.

LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT UPDATE
A report was submitted to update Members on current events – national, regional
and local, together with future plans in respect of learning and development for the
Panel.
Suggestions for any other learning and development opportunities Members may
have to support the Panel’s learning and development were welcomed.
Page 72

SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
20/09/21

A summary of the events which had taken place since the last meeting together
with details of proposed future events were set out within the report for Members’
information.
L Noble reminded Members that the Chief Constable had kindly offered to arrange
a ‘Force Induction Day’, which she urged all Members to take up. A proposal had
been circulated by email to Panel Members, with a request for a response by 1 st
October.
Members were also informed that the Panel’s host Authority (Barnsley MBC) had
now received the Panel’s Grant Allowance from the Home Office for 2021-22. This
remained unchanged from 2020-21.
RESOLVED – That Members of the Police and Crime Panel:-

16

i)

Noted the update.

ii)

Agreed to provide suggestions for future learning and development.

WORK PROGRAMME / PAB DATES
Members considered the 2021/22 Work Programme and were reminded that they
could submit issues for the Work Programme that fall within the Panel’s Statutory
role in supporting and scrutinising the Commissioner.
All issues would be given full consideration by the Chair, Vice-Chair and
Commissioner at the pre-agenda planning meetings.
Additionally, Members were encouraged to attend the meetings of the
Commissioner’s Public Accountability Board (PAB) to increase their operational
knowledge. These were currently being held virtually and Members could obtain
details to ‘dial in’ to the meeting from L Noble or A Shirt.
Members were reminded that they could also submit questions for PAB through the
OPCC, with 5 working days notice prior to the meeting.
Councillor Milsom reported that she had observed the recent PAB meeting. She
informed the Commissioner that it was not apparent who was speaking during the
course of the meeting. Due to the meeting being held in public, she suggested that
it would be beneficial if speakers could announce their name and role when they
speak.
F Topliss replied that the edited and published online recorded version of the
meeting did contain the names of all speakers.
Councillor Milson reported that information contained on the OPCC website in
relation to the PAB did not explain the Board’s remit and interface with the public,
nor its Terms of Reference.

Page 73

SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
20/09/21

F Topliss agreed to review the text contained on the OPCC website and provide
Councillor Milsom with a draft of any revised text prior to it being published, for her
comments.
RESOLVED – That Members of the Police and Crime Panel:-

17

i)

Noted the contents of the 2021/22 Work Programme.

ii)

Noted that F Topliss had agreed to review the PAB text contained on the
OPCC website and provide Councillor Milsom with a draft of any revised text
prior to it being published, for her comments.

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING
RESOLVED – That the next meeting of the Police and Crime Panel be held on
Monday 13th December 2021, 1:00 pm - venue to be confirmed.

CHAIR

Page 74

